
NOTICE: Persons with disabilities needing accommodations for effective participation in this meeting should 
contact the City Clerk at (248) 524-3316 or via e-mail at clerk@troymi.gov at least two working days in 
advance of the meeting. An attempt will be made to make reasonable accommodations. 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 

AGENDA 
 

 

Regular Meeting of the 
 

 

CITY COUNCIL 

OF THE CITY OF TROY 
 

FEBRUARY 7, 2011 
CONVENING AT 7:30 P.M. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

  Submitted By 

      The City Manager 





 

 

 
 
 
TO:   The Honorable Mayor and City Council 
   Troy, Michigan 
 
FROM:  John Szerlag, City Manager 
 
SUBJECT:  Background Information and Reports 
 
Ladies and Gentlemen: 
 
This booklet provides a summary of the many reports, communications and 
recommendations that accompany your Agenda. Also included are 
suggested or requested resolutions and/or ordinances for your 
consideration and possible amendment and adoption. 
 
Supporting materials transmitted with this Agenda have been prepared by 
department directors and staff members. I am indebted to them for their 
efforts to provide insight and professional advice for your consideration. 
 
As always, we are happy to provide such added information as your 
deliberations may require. 
 
Respectfully submitted, 

 
John Szerlag, City Manager 
 
 
 
 
 

 

 





 

 

      

  

 

CITY COUNCIL 
AGENDA 

February 7, 2011 – 7:30 PM 

Council Chambers 

City Hall - 500 West Big Beaver 

Troy, Michigan 48084 

(248) 524-3317 

INVOCATION: Pastor Stephen Husava – Northfield Hills Baptist Church 1 

PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE: 1 

A. CALL TO ORDER: 1 

B. ROLL CALL: 1 

C. CERTIFICATES OF RECOGNITION AND SPECIAL PRESENTATIONS: 1 

C-1 Certificates of Recognition and Special Presentations Scheduled 1 

a) Proclamation Presentation: Recognizing National Children of Alcoholics 
Week – February 13 -19, 2011. ............................................................................ 1 

b) Oakland County Introductions: Oakland County Clerk Bill Bullard, Jr., and 
County Commissioners: District 13-Robert Gosselin, District 19-Mike Bosnic, 
District 20-David W. Potts, District 24-Gary G. McGillivary. .................................. 1 

D. CARRYOVER ITEMS: 1 

D-1 No Carryover Items 1 

E. PUBLIC HEARINGS: 1 

E-1 Re-Programming Community Development Block Grant (CBDG) Program Year 
2008 and Program Year 2009 Funds 1 

F. PUBLIC COMMENT: 2 

F In accordance with the Rules of Procedure of the City Council, Article 16 – 
Members of the Public and Visitors: 2 



G. RESPONSE / REPLY TO PUBLIC COMMENT 3 

H. POSTPONED ITEMS: 3 

H-1  No Postponed Items 3 

I. REGULAR BUSINESS: 3 

I-1 Board and Committee Appointments: 3 

I-2 Board and Committee Nominations: 4 

I-3 Request for Closed Session – No Closed Session Requested 4 

I-4 Contract Extension – Auditing Services 4 

I-5 Adoption of Troy City Council Goals and Vision Statement 5 

I-6 Approval of Early Retirement Incentive Program – Classified and Exempt 
Employees 5 

J. CONSENT AGENDA: 7 

J-1a Approval of “J” Items NOT Removed for Discussion 7 

J-1b  Address of “J” Items Removed for Discussion by City Council 7 

J-2  Approval of City Council Minutes 7 

J-3 Proposed City of Troy Proclamation: National Children of Alcoholics Week – 
February 13 - 19, 2011 7 

J-4 Standard Purchasing Resolutions 7 

a) Standard Purchasing Resolution 1: Award to Low Bidder: LED Lighting and 
Retrofits ................................................................................................................ 7 

J-5 Renewal of Membership in the Traffic Improvement Association (TIA) of Oakland 
County 8 



J-6 Acceptance of Two Permanent Easements for Public Utilities form Wattles Square 
Center, LLC - #88-20-100-038 and Atto Construction, Inc. - #88-20-24-100-039 8 

J-7 Request from Board of County Road Commissioners of Oakland County to Grant 
a Highway Easement on City Owned Property, Section 6 – Sidwell #88-20-06-101-
001 8 

J-8 Mon Jin Lau Annual Fireworks Use Request 9 

K. MEMORANDUMS AND FUTURE COUNCIL AGENDA ITEMS: 9 

K-1 Announcement of Public Hearings: None Submitted 9 

K-2 Memorandums (Items submitted to City Council that may require consideration at  
some future point in time): None Submitted 9 

L. COUNCIL REFERRALS: 9 

L-1  Resolution Submitted by Council Member Howrylak, Perhaps for Discussion 
Purposes 9 

M. COUNCIL COMMENTS 10 

M-1   No Council Comments Advanced 10 

N. REPORTS 10 

N-1 Minutes – Boards and Committees: 10 

a) Election Commission/Final – September 23, 2010 ............................................. 10 
b) Downtown Development Authority/Final – December 15, 2010 ......................... 10 
c) Board of Zoning Appeals/Final – December 21, 2010 ........................................ 10 

d) Planning Commission Regular/Draft – January 11, 2011 ................................... 10 

e) Planning Commission Regular /Final – January 11, 2011 .................................. 10 

f) Retiree Health Care Benefits Plan & Trust/Draft – January 12, 2011 ................ 10 
g) Downtown Development Authority/Draft – January 19, 2011 ............................. 10 
h) Election Commission/Draft – January 31, 2011 ................................................. 10 
i) Election Coordinating Committee/Draft – January 31, 2011 .............................. 10 

N-2 Department Reports: 10 

a) December 31, 2010 – Quarterly Financial Report .............................................. 10 

N-3  Letters of Appreciation: 10 



a) Letter from the Eisenhardt Family to Police Department Thanking and 
Recognizing P.O. Livingston, P.O. Huck, P.O. Brandimore for Assistance in 
Locating a Missing Child ..................................................................................... 10 

b) Letter from Alanda Slusser to Police Department Thanking and Recognizing 
Lt. Livingston and P.O. Gobler for their Assistance and Professionalism ........... 10 

c) Letter from Margaret Ann Rendziperis to Carla Vaughan, Director of Senior 
Services, in Appreciation of the Chef’s Choice Dinner Dance ............................ 10 

N-4  Proposed Proclamations/Resolutions from Other Organizations: 10 

a) City of Rochester Resolution: Proposed Eliminate the Requirement that 
Clerks Send Corrected Voter Identification Cards Due to Changes in District 
for U.S. Representative, State Senate, State Representative, or County 
Commission ........................................................................................................ 10 

N-5  Michigan Public Service Commission – Notice of Hearing for the Gas Customers 
of the Consumers Energy Company – Case No. U-16485 10 

N-6  Troy Youth Assistance – Board of Directors Meeting Minutes – November 18, 
2010 10 

N-7  MLCC Sunday Sales Reports 11 

N-8  Stickney v. City of Troy et al. 11 

N-9  ICMA Report: Parks and Recreation Services 11 

N-10  Police Department Firearms Exchange 11 

N-11  Billy Casper Golf – Guest Comments and Mystery Shop Information 11 

O. STUDY ITEMS 11 

O-1  No Study Items Presented 11 

P. CLOSED SESSION: 11 

P-1  No Closed Session Requested 11 



F. ADJOURNMENT 11 

FUTURE CITY COUNCIL PUBLIC HEARINGS: 12 

SCHEDULED REGULAR CITY COUNCIL MEETINGS: 12 

Monday, February 21, 2011 Regular Meeting ....................................................... 12 
Monday, February 28, 2011 Regular Meeting ....................................................... 12 
Monday, March 7, 2011 Regular Meeting .............................................................. 12 
Monday, March 21, 2011 Regular Meeting ............................................................ 12 
Monday, March 28, 2011 Regular Meeting ............................................................ 12 
Monday, April 4, 2011 Regular Meeting ................................................................ 12 
Monday, April 18, 2011 Regular Meeting .............................................................. 12 
Monday, April 25, 2011 (Budget) Regular Meeting ................................................ 12 

Monday, May 2, 2011 (Budget) Regular Meeting .................................................. 12 
Monday, May 9, 2011 Regular Meeting ................................................................. 12 
Monday, May 16, 2011 Regular Meeting ............................................................... 12 
Monday, June 6, 2011 Regular Meeting ................................................................ 12 
Monday, June 20, 2011 Regular Meeting .............................................................. 12 

SCHEDULED SPECIAL CITY COUNCIL MEETINGS: 12 

Monday, February 7, 2011 after Regular Meeting Special Meeting ....................... 12 





CITY COUNCIL AGENDA February 7, 2011 

 

- 1 - 

INVOCATION: Pastor Stephen Husava – Northfield Hills Baptist Church  

PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE:  

A. CALL TO ORDER: 

B. ROLL CALL: 

a)  Mayor Louise E. Schilling 
Robin Beltramini 
Wade Fleming 
Martin Howrylak 
Mayor Pro Tem Mary Kerwin 
Maureen McGinnis 
Dane Slater 

 
b) Excuse Absent Council Members: 

 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2011-02- 
Moved by  
Seconded by  
 

RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby EXCUSES the absence of                    at 
the Regular City Council Meeting of Monday, February 7, 2011 due to                   . 
 
Yes:  
No:  
 

C. CERTIFICATES OF RECOGNITION AND SPECIAL PRESENTATIONS:  

C-1 Certificates of Recognition and Special Presentations Scheduled 
 

a) Proclamation Presentation: Recognizing National Children of Alcoholics Week – 
February 13 -19, 2011. 

b) Oakland County Introductions: Oakland County Clerk Bill Bullard, Jr., and County 
Commissioners: District 13-Robert Gosselin, District 19-Mike Bosnic, District 20-David 
W. Potts, District 24-Gary G. McGillivary. 

 

D. CARRYOVER ITEMS: 

D-1 No Carryover Items  
 

E. PUBLIC HEARINGS: 

E-1 Re-Programming Community Development Block Grant (CBDG) Program Year 

2008 and Program Year 2009 Funds 
 



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA February 7, 2011 

 

- 2 - 

Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2011-02- 
Moved by  
Seconded by  
 
WHEREAS, After conclusion of a public hearing on this date, February 7, 2011, Troy City 
Council has determined that the program year 2008 unexpended funds in the amount of 

$84,811.00 shall be RE-PROGRAMMED from Flood Drain Improvements to Section 36 Park 
Improvement Project #36-100-035 in the amount of $53,171.80, and to Administration in the 
amount of $31,639.20; and 

 
WHEREAS, After conclusion of a public hearing on this date, February 7, 2011, Troy City 
Council has determined that program year 2009 unexpended funds of $115,072.00, should be 

RE-PROGRAMMED from Flood Drain Improvements to Section 36 Park Improvement Project 
#36-100-035 in the amount of $81,505.00 and to Administration in the amount of $33,567.00. 
 
THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, That the Section 36 Park Improvement Project #36-100-035 

BE ADDED to the list of CDBG projects for 2008 and 2009. 
 
Yes: 
No: 
 

F. PUBLIC COMMENT: 

F In accordance with the Rules of Procedure of the City Council, Article 16 – Members of the 
Public and Visitors: 

 
Any person not a member of the City Council may address the Council with recognition of the 
Chair, after clearly stating the nature of his/her inquiry or comment. City Council requests that if 
you do have a question or concern, to bring it to the attention of the appropriate department(s) 
whenever possible. If you feel that the matter has not been resolved satisfactorily, you are 
encouraged to bring it to the attention of the City Manager, and if still not resolved satisfactorily, to 
the Mayor and Council. 
 

 Petitioners shall be given a fifteen (15) minute presentation time that may be extended with 
the majority consent of City Council. 

 Any member of the public, not a petitioner of an item, shall be allowed to speak for up to five 
(5) minutes to address any Public Hearing item. 

 Any member of the public, not a petitioner of an item, shall be allowed to speak for up to five 
minutes to address Postponed, Regular Business or Consent Agenda items or any other item 
as permitted under the Open Meetings Act during the Public Comment portion of the agenda. 

 City Council may waive the requirements of this section by a majority of the City Council 
members. 

 City Council may wish to schedule a Special Meeting for Agenda items that are related to 
topics where there is significant public input anticipated. 

 Through a request of the Chair and a majority vote of City Council, public Comment may be 
limited when there are fifteen (15) or more people signed up to speak either on a Public 
Hearing item or for the Public Comment period of the agenda. 



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA February 7, 2011 

 

- 3 - 

G. RESPONSE / REPLY TO PUBLIC COMMENT 

H. POSTPONED ITEMS: 

H-1  No Postponed Items 

I. REGULAR BUSINESS: 

I-1 Board and Committee Appointments:  
 

a) Mayoral Appointments 
 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2011-02- 
Moved by  
Seconded by 
 

RESOLVED, That the Mayor of the City of Troy hereby APPOINTS the following persons to 
serve on the Boards and Committees as indicated: 
 

Board of Review 
Appointed by Mayor (3-Regular) 3-Year Term  
 

 Term Expires 01/31/2014 

 
Yes: 
No: 
 

b) City Council Appointments  
 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2011-02- 
Moved by  
Seconded by 
 

RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby APPOINTS the following persons to serve on the 
Boards and Committees as indicated: 
 

Board of Zoning Appeals 
Appointed by Council (7-Regular) 3-Year Term  
 

Thomas Strat – Planning Commission Rep Term Expires 01/31/2012 

  

Philip Sanzica – Planning Commission Alt. Rep Term Expires 01/31/2012 

 
Yes: 
No: 
 
 



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA February 7, 2011 

 

- 4 - 

I-2 Board and Committee Nominations:  
 

a) Mayoral Nominations – None Forwarded 
 

b) City Council Nominations  
 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2011-02- 
Moved by  
Seconded by 
 

RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby FORWARDS the following nominated person(s) to 
serve on the Boards and Committees as indicated to the next Regular City Council Meeting for 
action: 
 

Employee Retirement System Board of Trustees/Retiree Health Care Benefits Plan & 

Trust: City Manager and Assistant City Manager/Finance & Administration; (1) City Council  
Rep; (1) Troy Citizen -City Council Appt.; (3) Trustees-Elected by Retirement System Members; 
(1) Retiree Member in Defined Benefit Plan – City Council Appt. 
3-Year Terms: Appointed Citizen, 3 Member Trustees, Council Trustee 
 

Ex-Officio-DB Retiree Rep. Term Expires 12/31/2013 

 
Yes: 
No: 
 

I-3 Request for Closed Session – No Closed Session Requested 
 

I-4 Contract Extension – Auditing Services 
 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2011-02- 
Moved by  
Seconded by  
  
WHEREAS, On April 18, 2005, Troy City Council hereby awarded a three (3) year contract with 
an option to renew for three (3) additional years to provide Audit Services for years 2005, 2006, 
and 2007 to The Rehmann Group of Troy, MI for an estimated annual cost of $63,820.00 
{Resolution #2005-04-182};  
 
WHEREAS, On December 17, 2007, Troy City Council exercised the option to renew the 
contract with The Rehmann Group for an estimated total cost of $67,568.00 under the same 
pricing structure, terms and conditions as the original contract to expire December 31, 2010 
{Resolution #2007-12-366-F4d};  
 
WHEREAS, The Rehmann Group has agreed to enter into a new three-year contract under the 
same terms and conditions, at their original bid prices not to exceed $63,820.00 for the 2011 
audit;  



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA February 7, 2011 

 

- 5 - 

WHEREAS, The Rehmann Group has met all expectations during the last six audits and their 
offer constitutes a 7% reduction from 2010 pricing;  
 
WHEREAS, Staff reductions and retirements will leave only one of the four City Accountants 
who were employed June 30, 2010, in place at June 30, 2011; and 
 
WHEREAS, The first two and particularly the first year of a new audit firm require a substantial 
increase of staff time and involvement in completing the annual audit; 
 

THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, That Troy City Council herby DEEMS it to be in the City’s 

best interest to hereby APPROVE and EXTEND the new contract to provide 2011 auditing 
services for the City of Troy from The Rehmann Group at an all inclusive maximum cost of 
$63,820.00 with adjustments allowed in years 2012 and 2013, as outlined under the original 
contract to expire December 31, 2013. 
 
Yes: 
No: 
 

I-5 Adoption of Troy City Council Goals and Vision Statement 
 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2011-02- 
Moved by  
Seconded by  
  

RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby ADOPTS the Troy City Council Goals and Vision 

Statement as presented and DIRECTS City Administration to develop objectives to facilitate 
Council’s goals for Council’s consideration at a future date. 
 
Yes: 
No: 
 

I-6 Approval of Early Retirement Incentive Program – Classified and Exempt 

Employees 
 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2011-02- 
Moved by  
Seconded by  
  
WHEREAS, Michigan’s continuing rising unemployment and reductions in the taxable value of 
real estate are adversely affecting the City of Troy’s operating revenues; 
 
WHEREAS, Michigan’s continuing economic distress has led City management to project 
significant budget short-falls for fiscal years 2011, 2012, and 2013; 
 
WHEREAS, Economic uncertainty demands that the City of Troy government reduce 
operational expenses while improving efficiency and effectiveness; 



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA February 7, 2011 

 

- 6 - 

WHEREAS, One recognized means of reducing operational expenses while simultaneously 
creating opportunities for reorganization and restructuring is to provide a voluntary separation 
incentive for City employees to retire; 
 
WHEREAS, Approximately 40 Classified and Exempt employees will meet the eligibility criteria 
for retirement from City employment as of February 28, 2011; and 28 Classified and Exempt 
employees are within five years of meeting the eligibility criteria for retirement from City 
Employment as of February 28, 2011; and 
 
WHEREAS, The proposed Early Retirement Incentive Program has been reviewed and is 
recommended by City management as a mechanism to reduce workforce levels, create 
position vacancies, and provide City management with the opportunity to reduce costs, 
reorganize and restructure operations; 
 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby AUTHORIZES 
implementation of the following Early Retirement Incentive Program to be offered to the 
Classified and Exempt employees who will be eligible to retire, or are within five years of 
eligibility, on or before February 28, 2011, provided that the program is economically beneficial 
to the City of Troy; and 
 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That the Early Retirement Incentive Program MAY BE offered 
during a minimum 48-day window of opportunity, with said incentive being the option of a lump 
sum payment of $1,000 for each full year of retirement service as of February 28, 2011 or the 
conversion from a DC pension plan to a DB pension plan; and 
 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That funding for the Early Retirement Incentive Program SHALL 

BE OBTAINED from funds mad available in the Department’s budgets, and funding for the 

Early Retirement DC to DB Program SHALL BE obtained from the funds contained in the 
members’ DC accounts; and 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That employees in the Defined Benefit and Defined Contribution 

retirement plans desiring to participate in the Early Retirement Incentive Program MUST FILE 
written application to retire no less than 30 days in advance of their requested retirement date 
which shall be no later than June 30, 2011 with the Employees’ Retirement System on the 
appropriate form; and 
 

BE IT FINALLY RESOLVED, That the lump sum Early Retirement Incentive pay SHALL NOT 
be included in the final average compensation (FAC) for employees in the Defined Benefit 

Plan; with the contributions TO BE made to an employee’s Defined Contribution Plan or 
Defined Benefit Plan by the City of Troy and the employee as a result of this lump sum 
payment. 
 
Yes: 
No: 
 
 



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA February 7, 2011 

 

- 7 - 

J. CONSENT AGENDA: 

J-1a Approval of “J” Items NOT Removed for Discussion 
 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2011-02- 
Moved by  
Seconded by  
 

RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby APPROVES all items on the Consent Agenda as 
presented with the exception of Item(s)  ______________                              , 

which SHALL BE CONSIDERED after Consent Agenda (I) items, as printed. 
 
Yes:  
No:  
 

J-1b  Address of “J” Items Removed for Discussion by City Council  
 

J-2  Approval of City Council Minutes 

 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2011-02- 
 

RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby APPROVES the Minutes of the Regular City 
Council Meeting of January 24, 2011 and the Minutes of the Special City Council Meeting of 
January 31, 2011 as submitted. 
 

J-3 Proposed City of Troy Proclamation: National Children of Alcoholics Week – 
February 13 - 19, 2011 

 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2010-12- 
 

RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby APPROVES the City of Troy proclamation 
recognizing: National Children of Alcoholics Week – February 13, - 19, 2011. 
 

J-4 Standard Purchasing Resolutions  
 

a) Standard Purchasing Resolution 1: Award to Low Bidder: LED Lighting and 

Retrofits 
 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2011-02- 
 

RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby AWARDS a contract to purchase and install LED 
Lighting and Retrofits on the main City Hall Campus and Police/Fire Training Facility to the low 
total bidder, Corby Energy Services, Inc of Belleville, MI, for an estimated total cost of 
$265,190.00.  
 



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA February 7, 2011 

 

- 8 - 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That Troy City Council ALLOWS additional lighting purchases 
from Corby Energy Services through June 30, 2011 for installation at the fire stations not-to-
exceed 25% of the total project cost or $66,290.00 at unit prices contained on the schedule of 

values and bid tabulation opened 1/24/2011, a copy of which shall be ATTACHED to the 
original Minutes of this meeting. 
 

BE IT FINALLY RESOLVED, That the award is CONTINGENT upon contractor submission of 
properly executed bid and contract documents, including insurance certificates and all other 
specified requirements. 

 
J-5 Renewal of Membership in the Traffic Improvement Association (TIA) of Oakland 

County 
 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2011-02- 
 

RESOLVED, That the Troy City Council hereby GRANTS approval to pay the renewal of the 
City of Troy’s membership in the Traffic Improvement Association for the year 2011, in the 
amount of $24,400, with the fee to be divided equally between the Traffic Engineering and 
Police Departments; Funds are available in the 2010-2011 Traffic Engineering’s Membership 
and Dues Fund and the 2010-2011 Police Department’s Contractual Services General Fund. 
 

J-6 Acceptance of Two Permanent Easements for Public Utilities form Wattles Square 

Center, LLC - #88-20-100-038 and Atto Construction, Inc. - #88-20-24-100-039 
 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2011-02- 
 

RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby ACCEPTS the Permanent Easements for public 
utilities from Wattles Square Center, LLC, owner of the property having Sidwell #88-20-24-100-
038 and Atto Construction Inc., owner of the property having Sidwell #88-20-24-100-039. 
 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That the City Clerk is hereby DIRECTED to record the 
Permanent Easements with the Oakland County Register of Deeds, a copy of which shall be 

ATTACHED to the original Minutes of this meeting. 

 
J-7 Request from Board of County Road Commissioners of Oakland County to Grant a 

Highway Easement on City Owned Property, Section 6 – Sidwell #88-20-06-101-001 
 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2011-02- 
 

RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby GRANTS the request from the Board of County 
Road Commissioners of Oakland County to grant a highway easement on City owned property 
with Sidwell #88-20-06-101-001; and 
 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That Troy Council hereby DIRECTS the Mayor and City Clerk to 
execute the easement document. 



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA February 7, 2011 

 

- 9 - 

J-8 Mon Jin Lau Annual Fireworks Use Request 
 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2011-02- 
 

RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby ISSUES a fireworks permit to Mon Jin Lau, located 
at 1515 East Maple Rd., for the use of fireworks at its annual Chinese New Year celebration on 
February 8

th
, 2011; and 

 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby INSTRUCTS the Troy Fire 
Department to inspect the fireworks’ display site and the fireworks to be used to assure 
compliance with applicable codes and standards for such a fireworks display. 
 

K. MEMORANDUMS AND FUTURE COUNCIL AGENDA ITEMS: 

K-1 Announcement of Public Hearings: None Submitted 
 

K-2 Memorandums (Items submitted to City Council that may require consideration at 

 some future point in time): None Submitted  
 

L. COUNCIL REFERRALS:  

Items Advanced to the City Manager by Individual City Council Members for 

Placement on the Agenda 

L-1  Resolution Submitted by Council Member Howrylak, Perhaps for Discussion 

Purposes  
 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2011-02- 
Moved by  
Seconded by  
 
WHEREAS, The City of Troy has an additional $1.7 million in unallocated fund reserves 
resulting from the 2009-2010 fiscal year’s financial performance; 
 
WHEREAS, The City of Troy’s Employees Retirement System realized an investment gain of 
$14.7 million for the year ending December 31, 2009 that is being amortized and will save the 
City of Troy significant contributions going forward; 
 
WHEREAS, The City of Troy’s Employees Retirement System realized significant investment 
gains for the year ending December 31, 2010 that will be amortized and will save the City of 
Troy significant contribution requirements going forward; 
 
WHEREAS, The City of Troy is aiming for and achieving 10-15% labor and benefit cost savings 
across all employee groups; and 
 
WHEREAS, The City of Troy has operated a free public library for the benefit of all for over 
forty years and there is a great need in the community for continuation of these services; 



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA February 7, 2011 

 

- 10 - 

 

THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, That the City Manager is hereby DIRECTED to draft an 
amended and revised multi-year budget that incorporates these cost savings and uses these 
funding sources to provide for and fund the Troy Public Library; and 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That this amended multi-year budget be brought back to the 
City Council no later than February 21, 2010. 
 

Yes: 
No: 

M. COUNCIL COMMENTS 

M-1   No Council Comments Advanced 

N. REPORTS 

N-1 Minutes – Boards and Committees: 

a) Election Commission/Final – September 23, 2010 

b) Downtown Development Authority/Final – December 15, 2010 

c) Board of Zoning Appeals/Final – December 21, 2010 

d) Planning Commission Regular/Draft – January 11, 2011 

e) Planning Commission Regular /Final – January 11, 2011 

f) Retiree Health Care Benefits Plan & Trust/Draft – January 12, 2011 

g) Downtown Development Authority/Draft – January 19, 2011 

h) Election Commission/Draft – January 31, 2011 

i) Election Coordinating Committee/Draft – January 31, 2011 

N-2 Department Reports:  

a) December 31, 2010 – Quarterly Financial Report 
 

N-3  Letters of Appreciation:  

a) Letter from the Eisenhardt Family to Police Department Thanking and Recognizing P.O. 
Livingston, P.O. Huck, P.O. Brandimore for Assistance in Locating a Missing Child 

b) Letter from Alanda Slusser to Police Department Thanking and Recognizing Lt. 
Livingston and P.O. Gobler for their Assistance and Professionalism 

c) Letter from Margaret Ann Rendziperis to Carla Vaughan, Director of Senior Services, in 
Appreciation of the Chef’s Choice Dinner Dance 

 

N-4  Proposed Proclamations/Resolutions from Other Organizations:  

a) City of Rochester Resolution: Proposed Eliminate the Requirement that Clerks Send 
Corrected Voter Identification Cards Due to Changes in District for U.S. Representative, 
State Senate, State Representative, or County Commission 

 

N-5  Michigan Public Service Commission – Notice of Hearing for the Gas Customers 

of the Consumers Energy Company – Case No. U-16485 
 

N-6  Troy Youth Assistance – Board of Directors Meeting Minutes – November 18, 2010 
 



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA February 7, 2011 

 

- 11 - 

N-7  MLCC Sunday Sales Reports 
 

N-8  Stickney v. City of Troy et al. 
 

N-9  ICMA Report: Parks and Recreation Services 
 

N-10  Police Department Firearms Exchange 
 

N-11  Billy Casper Golf – Guest Comments and Mystery Shop Information 
 

O. STUDY ITEMS 

O-1  No Study Items Presented 
 

P. CLOSED SESSION:  

P-1  No Closed Session Requested 
 

F. ADJOURNMENT 

 
Respectfully submitted, 

 
John Szerlag, City Manager 
 
 
 

pallottaba
Text Box



 
 
 
January 11, 2011 
 
 
TO:                The Honorable Mayor and City Council Members 
 
FROM:  John Szerlag, City Manager 
  Cindy Stewart, Community Affairs Director 
 
SUBJECT:    Public Hearing – Re-programming Community Development Block Grant 
                     (CDBG) Program Year 2008 and Program Year 2009 funds 
 

 
The Flood Drain Improvements account for CDBG program year 2008 has a balance of 
$84,811.00, and the Flood Drain Improvements account for CDBG program year 2009 
has a balance of $115,072.00. 
 
The proposed Flood Drain Improvement project in Section 36 consisting of installing 
storm drains with catch basins on Lovington Street, Minnesota to Dequindre is an 
extremely large project. Additional funding is not available at this time.   
 
The balance of funds from Program Years 2008 and 2009 must be expended or 
relinquished. 
 
Oakland County has recommended continuing the walking path project in Milverton 
Park as an eligible project under the CDBG program. This project would not be subject 
to Davis-Bacon if completed internally.  
 
Section 36 Park Walking Path project in Milverton Park was initiated after the Program 
Year 2008 and Program Year 2009 CDBG applications were submitted, so it was not 
included on our initial list of projects. 
 
Unexpended funds for CDBG Program Year 2008 must be exhausted by December 31, 
2011 and the CDBG Program Year 2009 funds must be exhausted by December 31, 
2012 in order for the City to be reimbursed by Oakland County through the CDBG 
Program. 
 
 
 
 

CCIITTYY  CCOOUUNNCCIILL  AACCTTIIOONN  RREEPPOORRTT  
 

bartholotl
Text Box
E-01



City Management recommends reprogramming unexpended CDBG Program Year 2008 
funds in the amount of $84,811.00 and unexpended CDBG Program Year 2009 funds in 
the amount of $115,072.00 from Flood Drain Improvements to Section 36 Park 
Improvement Project #36-100-035 and Administration as follows: 

 
From Program Year 2008: To: Parks, Recreational Facilities -   $53,171.80 
                         Administration -                           $31,639.20 
 
From Program Year 2009: To: Parks, Recreational Facilities -   $81,505.00 
                         Administration -                           $33,567.00 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
JS/cs\AGENDA ITEMS\2011\02.07.11 – Public Hearing – Reprogramming of CDBG Funds 



Page 1 of 2 

 

 

 
 
January 11, 2011 
 
 
TO:   John Szerlag, City Manager 
 
FROM: John M. Lamerato, Assistant City Manager/Finance & Administration 
  Susan A. Leirstein, Purchasing Director 

James A. Nash, Financial Services Director 
 
SUBJECT: Contract Extension – Auditing Services 
 
 
Background 

 On April 18, 2005, Troy City Council approved a three-year contract to provide Audit Services 
for the fiscal years ended June 30, 2005, 2006, and 2007 with an option to renew for three (3) 
additional years to The Rehmann Group, the vendor selected by Troy City Council as a result of 
a best value process. (Council Resolution #2005-04-182).  On December 17, 2007, the option 
was exercised for an additional three (3) year period (Resolution # 2007-12-366 F-4d) under the 
same pricing structure, terms, and conditions expiring December 31, 2010. 
 

 The Rehmann Group has offered to extend the contract for an additional three-year period 
beginning January 1, 2011, expiring December 31, 2013 at the prices originally bid in 2005.  
 

 The ongoing implementation of the New World Systems financial management platform has 
allowed some efficiency improvements during the last two audits. More information is being 
exchanged electronically with Rehmann’s auditors requiring fewer hours spent on-site. 

 

 Since the last contract renewal, the City has reduced staffing levels significantly. There are now 
three (3) City Accountants employed and directly involved with the annual audit as opposed to 
five (5) in 2008. At least one (1) Accountant is expected to retire prior to June 30, 2011. This 
loss of experience increases the challenge of continuing financial reporting excellence. 

 

 There are no requirements or recommendations to change external auditing firms; most cities 
retain firms for some time (Farmington Hills, 25 years; Sterling Heights, 20 years; Royal Oak, 
11 years; Oakland County, 10+ years). The initial audit with a new firm involves a very 
substantial time commitment from both the firm and City staff. While The Rehmann Group 
varies its procedures from year to year, they are familiar with the workings of the City’s finances 
and are able to conduct our audits more efficiently than a new firm coming in. Additionally, with 
reduced staffing, the Finance Department is unable to provide the level of support a new 
auditing firm would require. 

CCIITTYY  CCOOUUNNCCIILL  AAGGEENNDDAA  IITTEEMM 

pallottaba
Text Box
I-04



Page 2 of 2 

 

January 11, 2011 
 
To:  John Szerlag, City Manager 
Re:  Contract Extension – Auditing Services 
 
Background- continued 

 The Purchasing department does not conduct a traditional market survey when a best value 
process is utilized in making a recommendation. 
 

 Although pricing is just one factor in the selection process, the proposal submitted by The 
Rehmann Group is significant in that increased auditor liability has generally resulted in higher 
fees for municipalities and businesses.  
 
Financial Considerations 
 

 Funds are available in the various operating accounts for Finance, DDA, Block Grant 
Administration, and Brownfield Redevelopment. 

 
Option 
 

 City management recommends that City Council approve the contract extension with The 
Rehmann Group at an all inclusive maximum 2011 price of $63,820.00, the same as bid in 
2005. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Prepared by: James A. Nash, Financial Services Director 





 
 
Date February 3, 2011 

 
TO: Mayor Schilling and City Council 

 
FROM: John Szerlag, City Manager 

Tonni L. Bartholomew, City Clerk 
 

SUBJECT: Adoption of Troy City Council Goals and Vision Statement 
  
 
The attached document reflects the City Council recommended City Council Goals and 
Vision Statement as developed by City Council at their December 6, 2010 Council Study 
Session and subsequently amended at the Regular Council meeting of January 24, 2011.  
 
 

CCIITTYY  CCOOUUNNCCIILL  AACCTTIIOONN  IITTEEMM  

pallottaba
Text Box
I-05



 

Troy City Council  
Monday, January 24, 2011 - Revisions 

Vision/Goals Draft 

 
Vision: 
 To honor the legacy of the past and build a strong, vibrant future and become 

/strives to be / will be / is an attractive the most attractive, and competitive place to 
live, work and grow business 

  
Goals: 
 Provide a safe, clean, and livable city 
  Practice good stewardship of infrastructure  
  Maintain high quality professional community oriented police and fire protection 
  Conserve resources in an environmentally responsible manner 
  Encourage development toward a walkable, livable community 
   
 Provide effective and efficient local government 
  Demonstrate excellence in community services 
  Maintain fiscally sound local government 
  Attract and support a committed and innovative workforce 
  Develop and maintain efficiencies with internal and external partners 
  Conduct city business and engage in public policy formation in a clear and 

transparent manner 
   
 Build a sense of community 
  Communicate internally and externally in a timely and accurate manner 
  Develop platforms for transparent, deliberative and meaningful community 

conversations 
  Involve all stakeholders in communication and engagement activities 
  Encourage volunteerism and new methods for community involvement 
  Implement the connectedness of community outlines in the Master Plan 2008 
   
 Attract and retain business investment 
  Clearly articulate an economic development plan 
  Create an inclusive, entrepreneurial culture internally and externally 
  Clarify, reduce and streamline investment hurdles 
  Consistently enhance the synergy between existing businesses and growing 

economic sectors 
  Market the advantages of living and working in Troy through partnerships 
 
City Management will enhance goals by providing an objectives matrix subsequent to 
the Vision and Goals being adopted by City Council. 



bartholotl
Text Box
I-06

































CITY COUNCIL MINUTES – Draft January 24, 2011 

 

- 1 - 

Pastor Stephen Husava of Northfield Hills Baptist Church gave the Invocation. The Pledge of 
Allegiance to the Flag was given. 
 

A. CALL TO ORDER: 

A Regular Meeting of the Troy City Council was held Monday, January 24, 2011, at City Hall, 
500 W. Big Beaver Road. Mayor Schilling called the meeting to order at 7:30 PM. 

B. ROLL CALL: 

Mayor Louise E. Schilling 
 Robin Beltramini 
 Wade Fleming 
 Martin Howrylak 
 Mayor Pro Tem Mary Kerwin 
 Maureen McGinnis 
 Dane Slater 
 

C. CERTIFICATES OF RECOGNITION AND SPECIAL PRESENTATIONS:  

C-1 Certificates of Recognition and Special Presentations - None Scheduled 
 

D. CARRYOVER ITEMS: 

D-1 No Carryover Items  
 

E. PUBLIC HEARINGS: 

E-1 Public Hearing for the Establishment of an Industrial Development District (IDD) 

and Plant Rehabilitation District (PRD) for Meritor Heavy Vehicles, LLC – 2135 W. 

Maple 
 
The Mayor opened the Public Hearing for public comment. 
The Mayor closed the Public Hearing after receiving no comment from the public. 
 
Resolution #2011-01-006 
Moved by Kerwin   
Seconded by Beltramini  
 

RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby ESTABLISHES an Industrial Development District 
(IDD), and Plant Rehabilitation District (PRD) for property known as 2135 W. Maple, Troy, MI 
48084, Parcel #88-20-32-126-035, in accordance with City Council Policy Resolution #2010-08-
173; and 
 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That Troy City Council has DETERMINED that this district shall 

also be used for Plant Rehabilitation, and that PROPERTY COMPRISING NOT LESS THAN 

50% of the State Equalized Value (SEV) within the District is OBSOLETE; and 
 

pallottaba
Text Box
J-02



CITY COUNCIL MINUTES – Draft January 24, 2011 

 

- 2 - 

BE IT FINALLY RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby DIRECTS the City Clerk to forward 
a copy of this resolution to the State Tax Commission, Treasury Building, P.O. Box 30471, 
Lansing, MI 48909-7971. 
 
Yes: Schilling, Beltramini, Fleming, Kerwin, McGinnis, Slater  
No: Howrylak 
 

MOTION CARRIED 
 

E-2 Public Hearing for the Establishment of an Industrial Facilities Exemption 

Certificate (IFEC) for Meritor Heavy Vehicles, LLC – 2135 W. Maple 

 
The Mayor opened the Public Hearing for public comment. 
The Mayor closed the Public Hearing after receiving no comment from the public. 

 
Resolution #2011-01-007 
Moved by Beltramini   
Seconded by Fleming  
 
WHEREAS, After due notice and proper hearing, the City Council of the City of Troy on 
January 24, 2011, established an Industrial Development District (IDD) for property known as 
2135 W. Maple, Troy, MI 48084, Parcel # 88-20-32-126-035;  
 
WHEREAS, An Application has been submitted by Meritor Heavy Vehicles, LLC, for an 
Industrial Facilities Exemption Certificate (IFEC) for personal property at 2135 W. Maple, Troy, 
MI 48084, for twelve (12) years, after completion; and 
 
WHEREAS, After due and proper notice by the City Clerk, the City Council, on January 24, 
2011, held a Public Hearing giving opportunity for comment by all taxing units as to the 
possibility that the granting of an Industrial Facilities Exemption Certificate (IFEC) for Meritor 
Heavy Vehicles, LLC, at 2135 W. Maple, Troy, MI 48084 may have the effect of substantially 
impeding the operation of the taxing unit, or impairing the financial soundness of the taxing unit; 
 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, That Troy City Council has hereby FOUND that the 
granting of an Industrial Facilities Exemption Certificate (IFEC) for Meritor Heavy Vehicles, 
LLC, at 2135 W. Maple, Troy, MI 48084 shall not substantially impede the operation of the City 

of Troy or the other taxing units, NOR HAS IT BEEN FOUND that the granting of the Industrial 
Facilities Exemption Certificate (IFEC) will impair the financial soundness of the City of Troy, or 
the other taxing units which levy taxes on said property; and 
 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby APPROVES the application for 
an Industrial Facilities Exemption Certificate (IFEC) for Meritor Heavy Vehicles, LLC, Inc., at 
2135 W. Maple, Troy, MI 48084, Parcel # 88-20-32-126-035, for personal property for a term of 
twelve (12) years, after completion, contingent upon the execution of a Letter of Agreement 
between the City of Troy and Meritor Heavy Vehicles, LLC, and payment of the application fee 
established in accordance with Public Act 198 of 1974, as amended; and 
 



CITY COUNCIL MINUTES – Draft January 24, 2011 

 

- 3 - 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That the Mayor and City Clerk are hereby AUTHORIZED to 
execute the Letter of Agreement between the City of Troy and Meritor Heavy Vehicles, LLC, a 

copy of which shall be ATTACHED to the original Minutes of this meeting; and 
 

BE IT FINALLY RESOLVED, That the City Clerk is hereby AUTHORIZED to complete the 

Application and TRANSMIT same to the State Tax Commission, Treasury Building, P.O. Box 
30471, Lansing, MI 48909-7971 
 
Yes: Beltramini, Fleming, Kerwin, McGinnis, Slater, Schilling  
No: Howrylak  
 

MOTION CARRIED  
 

E-3 Public Hearing for the Establishment of an Industrial Facilities Exemption 

Certificate (IFEC) for Plant Rehabilitation, for Meritor Heavy Vehicles, LLC – 2135 

W. Maple 
 
The Mayor opened the Public Hearing for public comment. 
The Mayor closed the Public Hearing after receiving no comment from the public. 
 
Resolution #2011-01-008 
Moved by Slater   
Seconded by McGinnis  
 
WHEREAS, After due notice and proper hearing, the City Council of the City of Troy on 
January 24, 2011, established a Plant Rehabilitation District (PRD) for property known as 2135 
W. Maple, Troy, MI 48084, Parcel # 88-20-32-126-035;  
 
WHEREAS, An Application has been submitted by Meritor Heavy Vehicles, LLC, for an 
Industrial Facilities Exemption Certificate (IFEC) for Plant Rehabilitation, for real property at 
2135 W. Maple, Troy, MI 48084, for twelve (12) years after completion; and 
 
WHEREAS, After due an proper notice by the City Clerk, the City Council, on January 24, 
2011, held a Public Hearing giving opportunity for comment by all taxing units as to the 
possibility that the granting of a Industrial Facilities Exemption Certificate (IFEC) for Plant 
Rehabilitation, for Meritor Heavy Vehicles, LLC, at 2135 W. Maple, Troy, MI 48084 may have 
the effect of substantially impeding the operation of the taxing unit, or impairing the financial 
soundness of the taxing unit; 
 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, That Troy City Council has hereby FOUND that the 
granting of a Industrial Facilities Exemption Certificate (IFEC) for Plant Rehabilitation, for 
Meritor Heavy Vehicles, LLC, at 2135 W. Maple, Troy, MI 48084 shall not substantially impede 

the operation of the City of Troy or the other taxing units, NOR HAS IT BEEN FOUND that the 
granting of the Industrial Facilities Exemption Certificate (IFEC) for Plant Rehabilitation, will 
impair the financial soundness of the City of Troy, or the other taxing units which levy taxes on 
said property; and 
 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby APPROVES the application for a 
Industrial Facilities Exemption Certificate (IFEC) for Plant Rehabilitation, for Meritor Heavy 



CITY COUNCIL MINUTES – Draft January 24, 2011 

 

- 4 - 

Vehicles, LLC, Inc., at 2135 W. Maple, Troy, MI 48084, Parcel # 88-20-32-126-035, for real 
property for a term of twelve (12) years after completion, contingent upon the execution of a 
Letter of Agreement between the City of Troy and Meritor Heavy Vehicles, LLC, and in 
accordance with Public Act 198 of 1974, as amended; and 
 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That the Mayor and City Clerk are hereby AUTHORIZED to 
execute the Letter of Agreement between the City of Troy and Meritor Heavy Vehicles, LLC, a 

copy of which shall be ATTACHED to the original Minutes of this meeting; and 
 

BE IT FINALLY RESOLVED, That the City Clerk is hereby AUTHORIZED to complete the 

Application and TRANSMIT same to the State Tax Commission, Treasury Building, P.O. Box 
30471, Lansing, MI 48909-7971. 
 
Yes: Fleming, Kerwin, McGinnis, Slater, Schilling, Beltramini  
No: Howrylak  
 

MOTION CARRIED  

F. PUBLIC COMMENT:  

Janice Daniels: 
Discussed options to view City Council meetings; public comment; agenda 
items E-1, E-2 and E-3; the City Charter and the Library petition initiative.  

Richard Peters: Discussed topics related to local and national issues. 

James Savage: 
Discussed G. Response / Reply to Public Comment and his comments at a 
previous City Council meeting. 

Thomas Burke: Discussed the Library petition initiative.  

Dan Brake: Discussed the City Charter as it relates to the Library petition initiative. 

Steve Toth: 
Distributed Boys & Girls Club Newsletter, The Difference; invited the public 
to attend the Boys & Girls Club’s annual Taste of Troy fundraising event. 

G. RESPONSE / REPLY TO PUBLIC COMMENT 

H. POSTPONED ITEMS: 

H-1  No Postponed Items 

I. REGULAR BUSINESS: 

I-1 Board and Committee Appointments: None Scheduled 
 

I-2 Board and Committee Nominations:  
 

a) Mayor Nominations  
 
Resolution #2011-01-009 
Moved by Schilling   
Seconded by Howrylak  
 

RESOLVED, That the Mayor of the City of Troy hereby FORWARDS the following nominated 
person(s) to serve on the Boards and Committees as indicated to the next Regular City Council 
Meeting for action:  



CITY COUNCIL MINUTES – Draft January 24, 2011 

 

- 5 - 

Board of Review 
Appointed by Mayor (3-Regular) 3-Year Term  
 

Eileen (Nora) Turner Term Expires 01/31/2014 

 
Yes: Howrylak, Kerwin, McGinnis, Slater, Schilling, Beltramini, Fleming  
No: None 
 

MOTION CARRIED  

 
b) City Council Nominations 
 
Resolution #2011-01-010 
Moved by Beltramini   
Seconded by Howrylak  
 

RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby FORWARDS the following nominated person(s) to 
serve on the Boards and Committees as indicated to the next Regular City Council Meeting for 
action: 
 

Board of Zoning Appeals 
Appointed by Council (7-Regular) 3-Year Term  
 

Thomas Strat – Planning Commission Rep* Term Expires 01/31/2012 

  

Philip Sanzica – Planning Commission Alt. Rep* Term Expires 01/31/2012 

*Recommendation made by Planning Commission at their Tuesday, January 11, 2011 meeting 

 
Yes: Kerwin, McGinnis, Slater, Schilling, Beltramini, Fleming, Howrylak  
No: None 
 

MOTION CARRIED  
 

I-3 Closed Session - Troy v. Sentry, Inc. (Pro Car Wash) 
 
Resolution #2011-01-011 
Moved by Howrylak   
Seconded by McGinnis  
 

BE IT RESOLVED, That Troy City Council SHALL MEET in Closed Session, Troy v. Sentry, 
Inc. (Pro Car Wash) as permitted by MCL15.268 (e), Pending Litigation. 
 
Yes: McGinnis, Slater, Schilling, Beltramini, Fleming, Howrylak, Kerwin  
No: None 

 

MOTION CARRIED  

 



CITY COUNCIL MINUTES – Draft January 24, 2011 

 

- 6 - 

I-4 Application for New Class C Quota Liquor License – Troy Parks and Recreation 

Department – Troy Community Center 
 

a) Application for New Class C Quota License for City of Troy Parks and Recreation 

Department – Troy Community Center 

 
Resolution #2011-01-012a 
Moved by Beltramini  
Seconded by Fleming  
 

RESOLVED, That the Troy City Council hereby CONSIDERS for APPROVAL a Class C Quota 
License for the City of Troy, Parks and Recreation Department, to be located at 3179 Livernois, 
Troy MI 48084, Oakland County (Troy Community Center) “above all others”; and hereby 

AUTHORIZES the Mayor and City Clerk to EXECUTE the document, a copy of which shall be 

ATTACHED to the original Minutes of this meeting. 
 

b) License Escrow 

 
Resolution #2011-01-012b 
Moved by Beltramini  
Seconded by Fleming  
 

RESOLVED, That the City of Troy Parks and Recreation Department is hereby DIRECTED to 
place the new Class C Quota License into Escrow until such time as a catering vendor is under 
agreement and has been granted a license transfer. 
 
Yes: Slater, Schilling, Beltramini, Fleming, Kerwin, McGinnis   
No: Howrylak   
 

MOTION CARRIED 

J. CONSENT AGENDA: 

J-1a Approval of “J” Items NOT Removed for Discussion 
 
Resolution #2011-01-013 
Moved by Kerwin  
Seconded by McGinnis  
 

RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby APPROVES all items on the Consent Agenda as 

presented with the exception of Item(s) J-04d, which SHALL BE CONSIDERED after Consent 
Agenda (I) items, as printed. 
 
Yes: Schilling, Beltramini, Fleming, Howrylak, Kerwin, McGinnis, Slater  
No: None 
 

MOTION CARRIED 
 



CITY COUNCIL MINUTES – Draft January 24, 2011 

 

- 7 - 

J-2  Approval of City Council Minutes 

 
Resolution #2011-01-013-J-2 
 

RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby APPROVES the Minutes of the Regular City 
Council Meeting of January 10, 2011 as submitted. 
 

J-3 Proposed City of Troy Proclamations: None Submitted 
 

J-4 Standard Purchasing Resolutions  
 

a. Standard Purchasing Resolution 3: Exercise Renewal Option – Vehicle Graphics 
 
Resolution #2011-01-013-J-4a 
 
WHEREAS, On March 23, 2009, Troy City Council awarded a two-year contract for the 
installation and/or purchase of vehicle graphic material for Police, Fire and Fleet departments 
with an option to renew for two (2) additional years to the lowest acceptable total bidder, Majik 
Graphics, Inc. of Clinton Township, MI at unit prices contained in the bid tabulation opened 
February 11, 2009 (Resolution #2009-03-105-F-4f); and 
 
WHEREAS, Majik Graphics, Inc. has agreed to exercise the two-year option to renew the 
contract under the same pricing, terms and conditions; 
 

THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby EXERCISES the option to 
renew the contract with Majik Graphics, Inc. of Clinton Township, MI, to provide two-year 
requirements to install and/or purchase vehicle graphic material for the Police, Fire, and Fleet 
departments under the same prices, terms and conditions expiring March 31, 2013.  
 

b. Standard Purchasing Resolution 1: Award to Low Bidder: Newtek Tricaster 

TCXD850 Live Production Switcher System Including Installation 
 
Resolution #2011-01-013-J-4b 
 

RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby AWARDS a contract to purchase and install one 
(1) new Newtek Tricaster TCXD850 Live Production Switcher to the low bidder, Midwest Media 
Group, Inc. of Arlington Heights, IL, for an estimated total cost of $24,995.00, which includes 
on-site training, one-year full warranty, and on-site support for the first scheduled meeting after 
the initial installation, plus any additional technical support required during the first sixty (60) 
days of operation at $45.00/man-hour; and 
 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby AWARDS a contract to purchase 
and install one (1) new Newtek Tricaster TCXD850 Live Production Switcher to the low bidder, 

Midwest Media Group, Inc. of Arlington Heights, IL, CONTINGENT upon contractor’s 
submission of properly executed bid and contract documents, including insurance certificates 
and all other specified requirements. 
 
 



CITY COUNCIL MINUTES – Draft January 24, 2011 

 

- 8 - 

c. Standard Purchasing Resolution 10: Travel Authorization and Approval to Expend 

Funds for Council Member Travel Expenses – Michigan Municipal League 2011 

Capital Conference 
 
Resolution #2011-01-013-J-4c 
 

RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby AUTHORIZES City Council members to attend the 
Michigan Municipal League 2011 Capital Conference from April 5-6, 2011 in Lansing, Michigan, 
in accordance with accounting procedures of the City of Troy. 
 

J-5 Approval of Payment of Albanna Relocation Claim – Rochester Road  Improvement 

 Project, Torpey to Barclay, Project No. 99.203.5 & Wattles Road 

 Improvements, Bristol to Worthington, Project No. 01.106.5 Parcel 19 – Sidwell 

 #88-20-23-100-044 
 
Resolution #2011-01-013-J-5 
 

RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby APPROVES the Relocation Claim from Afrah 
Albanna pertaining to the City of Troy’s acquisition of property at 3990 Rochester Road as 
required by Michigan Laws and Federal Regulations; and  
 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby AUTHORIZES payment in the 
amount of $20,000.00. 
 

J-6 Oakland County Inter-Local Agreement – Ballot Layout and Programming Services 
 
Resolution #2011-01-013-J-6 
 

RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby APPROVES an Inter-Local Agreement between 
the City of Troy and Oakland County for ballot layout and programming services at a fee of 

$300.00 per election and AUTHORIZES the Mayor and City Clerk to sign the agreement, a 

copy of which shall be ATTACHED to the original Minutes of this meeting. 
 

J-1b  Address of “J” Items Removed for Discussion by City Council  
 

J-4 Standard Purchasing Resolutions  
 

d. Standard Purchasing Resolution 10: Travel Authorization and Approval to Expend 

Funds for Council Member Travel Expenses – National League of Cities’ 2011 

Congressional City Conference 
 
Resolution #2011-01-014 
Moved by Beltramini  
Seconded by McGinnis  
 

RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby AUTHORIZES City Council members to attend the 
National League of Cities’ 2011 Congressional City Conference from March 12-16, 2011 in 
Washington, DC, in accordance with accounting procedures of the City of Troy. 



CITY COUNCIL MINUTES – Draft January 24, 2011 

 

- 9 - 

Yes: Beltramini, Fleming, Howrylak, Kerwin, McGinnis, Slater, Schilling  
No: None 
 

MOTION CARRIED  
 

K. MEMORANDUMS AND FUTURE COUNCIL AGENDA ITEMS: 
K-1 Announcement of Public Hearings: None Submitted 

 

K-2 Memorandums (Items submitted to City Council that may require consideration at 

 some future point in time):  
 

a) Contract Extension – Auditing Services 

L. COUNCIL REFERRALS:  

L-1  No Council Referrals Advanced 

M. COUNCIL COMMENTS 

M-1   Council Comments Advanced: 
 
Mayor Schilling discussed agenda item N-8 Memorandum: Update on Employee Concessions 
– Classified and Exempt Employees. 
 
Council Member McGinnis discussed agenda items: N-6 Troy City Council – Vision/Goals – 
Draft; N-7 Memorandum: Report on January Troy City Manager’s Roundtable Meeting; N-8 
Memorandum: Update on Employee Concessions – Classified and Exempt Employees; N-10 
Memorandum: Library Update. 
 
Council Member Beltramini discussed agenda item N-10 Memorandum: Library Update. 
 
Council Member Kerwin discussed agenda item N-10 Memorandum: Library Update and 
requested that the information be made available to the public on the Library’s webpage. 
 
Discussion took place at the table regarding agenda item N-6 Troy City Council – Vision/Goals 
– Draft. Council Members suggested several revisions and were in agreement that the 
document needs further review before finalizing. There was a consensus of City Council to 
direct City Management to provide City Council with an updated version of Troy City Council – 
Vision/Goals in their FYI packet on Friday, January 28

th
, for City Council to review the revisions, 

provide feedback to City Management on Monday, January 31
st 

and be slated as an agenda 
item for the February 7

th
 City Council meeting.  

 
Council Member Howrylak made a statement to clarify public comments made at the January 
10, 2011 City Council meeting in regard to employee compensation. 
 
Mayor Schilling left the meeting at 9:18 PM. 



CITY COUNCIL MINUTES – Draft January 24, 2011 

 

- 10 - 

N. REPORTS 

N-1 Minutes – Boards and Committees: 

a) Retiree Health Care Benefits Plan & Trust/Final – October 13, 2010 

b) Library Advisory Board/Final – November 4, 2010 

c) Employees’ Retirement System Board of Trustees/Final December 8, 2010 

d) Planning Commission Regular/Draft – December 14, 2010 

e) Planning Commission Regular/Final – December 14, 2010 

f) Board of Zoning Appeals/Draft – December 21, 2010 

g) Planning Commission Regular/Draft – January 11, 2011 

h) Library Advisory Board/Draft – January 13, 2011 
Noted and Filed 

 

N-2 Department Reports:  

a) Permits Issued December 2010 
Noted and Filed 

 

N-3  Letters of Appreciation:  

a) Letter of Appreciation from Marco Signorello to Police Chief Gary Mayer Recognizing 
Police Officer Mairorano 

Noted and Filed 
 

N-4  Proposed Proclamations/Resolutions from Other Organizations: None Proposed 
 

N-5  Communication: Liquor Control Commission – Permit Authorizing to Sell Spirits, 

Mixed Spirit Drink and/or Beer and Wine on Sunday 
Noted and Filed 

 

N-6  Troy City Council – Vision/Goals – Draft 
Noted and Filed 

 

N-7  Memorandum: Report on January Troy City Manager’s Roundtable Meeting 
Noted and Filed 

 

N-8  Memorandum: Update on Employee Concessions – Classified and Exempt 

Employees 
Noted and Filed 

 

N-9 Letter of Resignation from City Clerk Tonni Bartholomew from the Federal Election 

Assistance Commission Standards Board to Secretary of State Ruth Johnson  
Noted and Filed 

 

N-10 Memorandum: Library Update 
Noted and Filed 

 



CITY COUNCIL MINUTES – Draft January 24, 2011 

 

- 11 - 

N-11 Memorandum: Utility Cost Savings by Shutting Down City Hall One Day per Week, 

on Fridays 
Noted and Filed 

O. STUDY ITEMS 

O-1  No Study Items Presented 
 

The meeting RECESSED at 9:19 PM. 

Mayor Schilling returned. 
 

The meeting RECONVENED at 9:23 PM. 

P. CLOSED SESSION:  

P-1  Troy v. Sentry, Inc. (Pro Car Wash) 
 

ADJOURNMENT 

The meeting ADJOURNED at 9:30 PM. 

  

 

 

 

 
 

Louise E. Schilling, Mayor 
 
 
 

Tonni L. Bartholomew, MMC  
City Clerk 

 



CITY COUNCIL SPECIAL MINUTES - Draft January 31, 2011 
 

- 1 - 

A. CALL TO ORDER: 
A Special Meeting of the Troy City Council was held Monday, January 31, 2011, at City Hall, 
500 W. Big Beaver Road. Mayor Schilling called the meeting to order at 6:00 PM. 

B. ROLL CALL: 
Mayor Louise E. Schilling 
Robin Beltramini 
Wade Fleming 
Martin Howrylak 
Mayor Pro Tem Mary Kerwin 
Maureen McGinnis 
Dane Slater 

C. DISCUSSION ITEMS:  

C-1 Review of the ICMA Report    
 
The meeting RECESSED at 7:34 PM. 
 
The meeting RECONVENED at 7:41 PM. 
 
 
D. PUBLIC COMMENT:  
 
John Cribari 22 year auto business employee shared business cycle experience. 
Linda Kajma Commended the City for the ICMA Report. 
Janice Daniels Conveyed the report did not contain the information she was requesting. 

E. ADJOURNMENT: 

The meeting ADJOURNED at 8:12 PM. 

  
 
 
 
 
 

Louise E. Schilling, Mayor 
 
 
 
Tonni L. Bartholomew, MMC  
City Clerk 

 

bartholotl
Text Box
J-02



bartholotl
Text Box
J-03



 

 

1 
 

CCIITTYY  CCOOUUNNCCIILL  AAGGEENNDDAA  IITTEEMM
 
January 26, 2011                 
 
 
To:   John Szerlag, City Manager     
  
From:            John M. Lamerato, Assistant City Manager/Finance and Administration 
  Mark F. Miller, Acting Assistant City Manager/Economic Development Services 
   Susan A. Leirstein, Purchasing Director 
  Steven A. Pallotta, Director of Building Operations 

Zachary Branigan LEED AP, Consultant 
 
Subject: Standard Purchasing Resolution 1 – Award To Low Bidder: LED Lighting and Retrofits  
 
 
Background 
 
On January 24, 2011, four (4) bid proposals were received to furnish and install LED Lighting on the 
City Hall municipal campus.  A total of 256 vendors were notified via the MITN system. 
 
Carlisle / Wortman Associates, Inc under the direction of Zachary Branigan, LEED   AP, AICP 
Associate developed funding recommendations that were approved through the Energy Efficiency 
and Conservation Block Grant Program. 
. 
The Energy Efficiency and Conservation Block Grant required Rapid Energy Assessment Programs 
to identify a series of factors where the City could realize significant energy savings.  The LED 
Lighting Retrofits upgrades were chosen to reduce energy consumption at the City Hall main campus 
buildings, and the Police/Fire Training facility. 
 
This project will reduce the overall electrical usage and maintenance costs associated with old 
inefficient lighting fixtures.  
 
The LED Lighting upgrades will use Michigan designed and manufactured products.  Relume 
Technologies is based in Oxford, Michigan, established in 1994. Relume began LED research and 
design work seventeen (17) years ago as a contract firm for the United States Department of 
Defense, and was a pioneer in LED technologies back in the infancy of this new form of lighting. 
Many of the solutions for military applications manufactured by Relume were put into service in the 
Middle East during the beginning of the Gulf War and are still in active use today, including LED 
battlefield lights, check-point signals, and mobile surgical unit shelter lighting. Relume’s LED 
Solutions use CREE LEDs manufactured in Durham, North Carolina, custom optics made in Indiana, 
aluminum extrusions, powder coating, and circuit boards made in Michigan, and all assembly 
operations are completed at Relume’s Oxford, Michigan plant, giving Relume products the distinction 
of having the highest domestic and Michigan content of any LED manufacturer in the US .  
 

bartholotl
Text Box
J-04a



 

 

2 
 

CCIITTYY  CCOOUUNNCCIILL  AAGGEENNDDAA  IITTEEMM
January 26, 2011 
 
To: John Szerlag, City Manager 
Re: Award To Low Bidder – LED Lighting and Retrofits 
 
Background  (continued) 
 
All products carry a seven (7) year warranty to 70% lumen maintenance, setting an industry-leading 
new standard for LED performance-driven warranties.  This project will allow the City to analyze the 
performance of Michigan –manufactured LED components, and provide energy conservation 
solutions. The LED Lighting Retrofits are one of the recommended implementation of Rapid Energy 
Assessment Project.  
 
Recommendation 
 
City management recommends awarding a contract to furnish and install LED lighting to the low total 
bidder, Corby Energy Services, Inc of Belleville, Michigan at an estimated total cost of $265,190.00.  
The award is contingent upon contractor’s submission of proper insurance certificates and all other 
specified requirements. 
 
In addition, staff requests additional lighting purchases be allowed through June 30, 2011 for 
installation at the fire stations not-to-exceed 25% of the total project cost or $66,290.00 at unit prices 
contained on the bid tabulation and schedule of values. 
 
Fund Availability  
 
Funds are available in the Building Operations capital fund for building and improvements which will 
be reimbursed through the Energy Efficiency and Conservation Block Grant (EECBG) Program. 
 
 
 





Opening Date -- 1/24/11 CITY OF TROY ITB-COT 10-42
Date Reviewed - 1/26/11 BID TABULATION Page 1 of 4

sl LED LIGHTING 
VENDOR NAME:

**

CHECK #:
CHECK AMOUNT:

Electrex Company, Inc. 

5082539903
$15,000.00

000190989
$15,000.00

Corby Energy Services, Inc. 

CHECK AMOUNT:
PROPOSAL A:  LED LIGHTING AND RETROFIT INCLUDING INSTALLATION - VARIOUS LOCATIONS

EST UNIT PRICE EXT COST COMPLETE SUM UNIT PRICE EXT COST COMPLETE SUM
ITEM DESCRIPTION QTY MATERIAL MATERIAL INSTALLATION MATERIAL MATERIAL INSTALLATION

1 25 95.00$       2,375.00$    3,125.00$       107.06$    2,676.50$    3,326.50$        

2 28 325.00$     9,100.00$    11,750.00$     358.28$    10,031.84$  11,214.84$      

3 12    635.00$     7,620.00$   8,570.00$      701.72$   8,420.64$    8,891.64$       

$15,000.00

12 Watt / LR6C

$15,000.00

41 Watt / LWP2 

64 Watt / LFL2 $ ,$ ,$ $ ,$ ,$

4 49 625.00$     30,625.00$  35,475.00$     707.02$    34,643.98$  34,840.98$      

5 33 600.00$     19,800.00$  26,650.00$     655.08$    21,617.64$  23,228.64$      

6 24 775.00$     18,600.00$  26,100.00$     835.28$    20,046.72$  21,219.72$      

7 4 865.00$     3,460.00$    4,210.00$       941.28$    3,765.12$    3,963.12$        

8 20 325.00$     6,500.00$    7,500.00$       357.22$    7,144.40$    7,999.40$        

9 66 875 00$ 57 750 00$ 60 250 00$ 941 28$ 62 124 48$ 65 776 48$

80 Watt / PS1 

60 Watt / Custom 

119 Watt / PS2 

79 Watt / Custom 

38 Watt / LWP1 

121 W tt / V 250 III9 66 875.00$     57,750.00$ 60,250.00$    941.28$   62,124.48$  65,776.48$     

10 33 890.00$     29,370.00$  30,645.00$     941.28$    31,062.24$  32,888.24$      

11 1 200.00$     200.00$       260.00$          212.00$    212.00$       257.00$           

12 1 325.00$     325.00$       410.00$          357.22$    357.22$       400.22$           

13 13 1,250.00$  16,250.00$  16,750.00$     1,325.00$ 17,225.00$  17,945.00$      

14 8 1,250.00$  10,000.00$ 10,300.00$    1,325.00$ 10,600.00$  11,045.00$     

121 Watt / Vue 250 – III

121 Watt / Vue 250 – II 

8.39 Watt / LWP3 

39 Watt / LFL1 

245 Watt / Vue 400 – II

245 Watt / Vue 400 – III14 8 1,250.00$  10,000.00$ 10,300.00$    1,325.00$ 10,600.00$  11,045.00$     

15 6 800.00$     4,800.00$    5,030.00$       800.30$    4,801.80$    5,141.80$        

16 2 700.00$     1,400.00$    1,475.00$       763.20$    1,526.40$    1,636.40$        

Est. Material & Install Total:  Proposal A

PROPOSAL B:  LED LIGHTING - PARTS ONLY
EST UNIT PRICE UNIT PRICE

ITEM DESCRIPTION QTY MATERIAL MATERIAL

248,500.00$                                                

245 Watt / Vue 400  III

84 Watt / Vue 150 – III  

65 Watt / Vue 100 he – II

249,774.98$                                                

Total 
Cost

Total 
CostITEM DESCRIPTION QTY MATERIAL MATERIAL

17 102 95.00$       101.00$    

18 20 155.00$     73.00$      

19 30 130.00$     134.00$    
Est Total Material Cost: Proposal B  
EST. GRAND TOTAL PROPOSALS A & B

12 Watt / LR6 / SC6

12 Watt / LRP38

265,190.00$                                                

12 Watt / LR6C

16,690.00$                                                  15,782.00$                                                  

Cost

9,690.00$                               
3,100.00$                               
3,900.00$                               

Cost

10,302.00$                             

1,460.00$                               

4,020.00$                               

265,556.98$                                                

CONTACT INFORMATION: 
Hours of Operation
24 Hr Phone #

COMPLETION SCHEDULE: 
Can Meet Y or N

SITE INSPECTION: Y or N

7AM - 5PM 
(313) 350-2441

Y
May 31, 2011 May 31, 2011

8:00AM - 5:00PM 
(586) 468-7571

YY

Y

Date

PROGRESS PAYMENT:
Identified as 

INSURANCE: Can Meet
Cannot Meet

XXXX

Blank Blank 
Monthly Progress Payments Monthly Installment Billing

1/11/2011 1/11/2011

SCHEDULE OF VALUES 
Attached: Y or N Y Y



Opening Date -- 1/24/11 CITY OF TROY ITB-COT 10-42
Date Reviewed - 1/26/11 BID TABULATION Page 2 of 4

LED LIGHTING 
VENDOR NAME:

** Corby Energy Services, Inc. Electrex Company, Inc. 

EXCEPTIONS:

WARRANTY:

VENDOR QUESTIONNAIRE: 
Attached Y / N

TWO FORMS COMPLETED

No Exceptions NA 

As Specified

YY

TWO FORMS COMPLETED:
Legal Status Y / N
Non-Collusion Y / N

ACKNOWLEDGEMENT: Signed Y / N

ADDENDUM #1: Attached: Y / N

Y

Y
Y

Y

Y
Y

YY

ATTEST: **  BOLDFACE TYPE DENOTES LOW TOTAL BIDDER
Steven Pallotta

Diane Fisher __________________________

Julie Hamilton Susan Leirstein CPPO CPPB

Purchasing Director

G: ITB-COT 10-42 LED Lighting.xls



Opening Date -- 1/24/11 CITY OF TROY ITB-COT 10-42
Date Reviewed - 1/26/11 BID TABULATION Page 3 of 4

LED LIGHTING 
VENDOR NAME:

CHECK #:
CHECK AMOUNT:

PROPOSAL A:  LED LIGHTING AND RETROFIT INCLUDING INSTALLATION - VARIOUS LOCATIONS
EST UNIT PRICE EXT COST COMPLETE SUM UNIT PRICE EXT COST COMPLETE SUM

ITEM DESCRIPTION QTY MATERIAL MATERIAL INSTALLATION MATERIAL MATERIAL INSTALLATION

1 25 94.00$       2,350.00$    3,931.38$       82.95$      2,073.75$    4,738.00$        

2 28 338.78$     9,485.84$    11,983.16$     306.60$    8,584.80$    16,761.80$      

3 12    688.81$     8,265.72$    10,898.80$     618.45$    7,421.40$    11,204.40$      

4 49 650.18$     31,858.82$  37,003.60$     646.80$    31,693.20$  40,572.00$      

5 33 618.25$     20,402.25$  23,763.07$     576.45$    19,022.85$  31,528.85$      

6 24 813.32$     19,519.68$  24,437.58$     748.65$    17,967.60$  29,485.00$      

7 4 900.49$     3,601.96$    4,362.43$       831.60$    3,326.40$    6,654.40$        

8 20 333.77$     6,675.40$    8,687.80$       309.52$    6,190.40$    14,250.00$      

9 66 917.41$     60,549.06$  77,832.48$     832.65$    54,954.90$  90,132.90$      

10 33 917.41$     30,274.53$  38,916.24$     832.65$    27,477.45$  42,977.45$      

11 1 198.95$     198.95$       294.56$          177.45$    177.45$       1,581.45$        

12 1 345.60$     345.60$       480.59$          306.60$    306.60$       1,710.60$        

13 13 1,272.33$  16,540.29$  20,192.71$     1,178.10$ 15,315.30$  25,364.30$      

14 8 1,272.33$  10,178.64$  12,426.28$     1,178.10$ 9,424.80$    14,468.80$      

15 6 813.13$     4,878.78$    6,273.50$       714.14$    4,284.84$    8,912.84$        

16 2 775.05$     1,550.10$    1,930.63$       672.00$    1,344.00$    3,892.00$        

Est. Material & Install Total:  Proposal A

PROPOSAL B:  LED LIGHTING - PARTS ONLY
EST UNIT PRICE UNIT PRICE

ITEM DESCRIPTION QTY MATERIAL MATERIAL

17 102 90.39$       82.95$      

18 20 149.50$     82.95$      

19 30 123.33$     114.48$    
Est Total Material Cost: Proposal B  
EST. GRAND TOTAL PROPOSALS A & B

CONTACT INFORMATION: 
Hours of Operation
24 Hr Phone #

COMPLETION SCHEDULE: 
Can Meet Y or N

SITE INSPECTION: Y or N
Date

PROGRESS PAYMENT:
Identified as 

INSURANCE: Can Meet
Cannot Meet

SCHEDULE OF VALUES 
Attached: Y or N 

Rauhorn Electric, Inc. Allied Building Service 

9479203979 000250360
$15,000.00 $15,000.00

12 Watt / LR6C

41 Watt / LWP2 

64 Watt / LFL2 

80 Watt / PS1 

60 Watt / Custom 

119 Watt / PS2 

79 Watt / Custom 

38 Watt / LWP1 

121 Watt / Vue 250 – III

121 Watt / Vue 250 – II 

8.39 Watt / LWP3 

39 Watt / LFL1 

245 Watt / Vue 400 – II

245 Watt / Vue 400 – III

84 Watt / Vue 150 – III  

65 Watt / Vue 100 he – II

283,414.81$                                                344,234.79$                                                

Total Total 
Cost Cost

12 Watt / LR6C 9,219.78$                               8,460.90$                               

12 Watt / LR6 / SC6 2,990.00$                               1,659.00$                               

12 Watt / LRP38 3,699.90$                               3,434.40$                               
15,909.68$                                                  13,554.30$                                                  

299,324.49$                                                357,789.09$                                                

7:00AM - 5:30PM 7:00AM - 5:00PM
(586) 405-7774 (248) 882-2152

May 31, 2011 May 31, 2011
45 Days After Fixture Delivery Y

Y Y
1/11/2011 1/11/2011

Monthly Installments after fixture delivery Monthly Invoicing based on work completed
Blank Blank

XX Y

Y Y



Opening Date -- 1/24/11 CITY OF TROY ITB-COT 10-42
Date Reviewed - 1/26/11 BID TABULATION Page 4 of 4

LED LIGHTING 
VENDOR NAME:

EXCEPTIONS:

WARRANTY:

VENDOR QUESTIONNAIRE: 
Attached Y / N

TWO FORMS COMPLETED:
Legal Status Y / N
Non-Collusion Y / N

ACKNOWLEDGEMENT: Signed Y / N

ADDENDUM #1: Attached: Y / N

G: ITB-COT 10-42 LED Lighting.xls

Rauhorn Electric, Inc. Allied Building Service 

additional $14,460.00 to bid Blank

Y Y

As Specified

Y Y

Bid excludes sales tax - if required add 

Y Y
Y Y

Y Y



 

 

1 

 

CCIITTYY  CCOOUUNNCCIILL  AAGGEENNDDAA  IITTEEMM  
 

 
Date:              January 20, 2011               
 
 
To:   John Szerlag, City Manager     
  
From:  John M. Lamerato, Assistant City Manager/Finance & Administration 
  Mark F. Miller, Acting Assistant City Manager/Economic Development Services 
  Steve Vandette, City Engineer 
  Gary G. Mayer, Chief of Police 
 
Subject: Renewal of Membership in the Traffic Improvement Association (TIA) of Oakland 

County 
 
Background 
 
The City of Troy has been a member of the TIA since 1975. The TIA is a private non-profit organization 
that is responsive to the problems and needs of local traffic officials. They are a source for traffic facts, 
including traffic crashes and traffic operations data. The City of Troy obtains citywide traffic crash statistics 
(including the intersection and road segment crash reports and ranking, county traffic crash trends, 
location specific crash details, and alcohol related statistics from the TIA and as a TIA member they are 
provided without charge.  
 
The TIA works with the Troy Police Department on several enforcement-related projects and grants, 
including recent and ongoing speed limit studies in order for the City of Troy to be compliant with Public 
Act 85. They facilitated the Police Department in obtaining over $18,900.00 last year in federal grants for 
alcohol and seat belt endorsement. The TIA also works with our adjacent communities to improve traffic in 
the general area that can be a secondary benefit to the City. 
 
Recommendation 
 
It is recommended that the City of Troy renew its membership with the Traffic Improvement 
Association.  The partnership the City has developed with TIA over the past 35 years has led to many 
collaborative efforts that have enhanced traffic safety in our community.   
 
Fund Availability  
 
The renewal membership fee for the year 2011 is $ 24,400.00, the same fee charged in 2009 
and 2010.   Funds are available and will be divided equally between Traffic Engineering’s 
Membership and Dues fund and the Police Department’s Contractual Services General fund. 
 
City Attorney’s Review as to Form and Legality  
 
N/A 
 
 
DGL/dgl H:2011 tia membership renewal city council report 

bartholotl
Text Box
J-05



pallottaba
Text Box
J-06











pallottaba
Text Box
J-07













 
 
January 19, 2011                          
 
 
TO:    John Szerlag, City Manager 
 
FROM:  William Nelson, Fire Chief 
   David Roberts, Fire Marshal 
 
SUBJECT:  Mon Jin Lau Annual Fireworks Use Request  
 
 
Background:  
 

• Mon Jin Lau has requested permission to use firecrackers at its annual Lion Dance to celebrate 
Chinese New Year on February 8

th
, 2011. 

• There appear to be no changes from last year’s event.  

• City Council has approved this request in the past. 
 
Financial Considerations:  
 

Mon Jin Lau has been instructed to submit a fireworks permit application to the fire department along 
with the $125.00 fee as required by ordinance. 

 
Legal Considerations:  
 

• Troy City Code Chapter 93, Fire Prevention, Section 105.6.14.1, requires an operational permit for 
the public display of fireworks. 

• Troy City Code Chapter 93, Fire Prevention, Section 3301.1.3, prohibits the use of fireworks unless 
in compliance with the Michigan Fireworks Law. 

• Michigan’s Fireworks Law requires that any person or group that would like to conduct a fireworks 
display must apply to the local unit of government for a permit. The law defines local unit of 
government as the council or commission of a city or village, or the township board of a township.  

• The use of firecrackers at this public event is considered to be a public display. 
 

Policy Considerations: 
  

The permitting process is consistent with City Council’s goal of enhancing the safety of the 
community. 

 
Options:  
 

Approve or deny the request.   

CCIITTYY  CCOOUUNNCCIILL  AACCTTIIOONN  RREEPPOORRTT  
 

pallottaba
Text Box
J-08



From: John Szerlag
To: "mfhowryl@umich.edu"
Cc: Lori G Bluhm; Tonni L Bartholomew; Barbara A Pallotta
Subject: RE: resolution for Monday"s meeting
Date: Friday, February 04, 2011 1:28:51 PM

Martin:

Your email will appear under Council Referrals.

John

-----Original Message-----
From: mfhowryl@umich.edu [mailto:mfhowryl@umich.edu]
Sent: Friday, February 04, 2011 12:13 PM
To: John Szerlag
Subject: resolution for Monday's meeting

John,

Please put this resolution on the agenda for Monday's meeting, at 
least for discussion purposes. Thanks.

Martin

WHEREAS, the City of Troy has an additional $1.7 million in 
unallocated fund reserves resulting from the 2009-2010 fiscal year?s 
financial performance, AND

WHEREAS, the City of Troy?s Employees Retirement System realized an 
investment gain of $14.7 million for the year ending December 31, 2009 
that is being amortized and will save the City of Troy significant 
contributions going forward, AND

WHEREAS, the City of Troy?s Employees Retirement System realized 
significant investment gains for the year ending December 31, 2010 
that will be amortized and will save the City of Troy significant 
contribution requirements going forward, AND

WHEREAS, the City of Troy is aiming for and achieving 10-15% labor and 
benefit cost savings across all employee groups, AND

WHEREAS, the City of Troy has operated a free public library for the 
benefit of all for over forty years and there is a great need in the 
community for continuation of these services.

THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that the City Manager is hereby directed to 
draft an amended and revised multi-year budget that incorporates these 
cost savings and uses these funding sources to provide for and fund 
the Troy Public Library; and

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that this amended multi-year budget be brought 
back to the City Council no later than February 21, 2010.

mailto:/O=CITY OF TROY/OU=CITYOFTROY/CN=RECIPIENTS/CN=SZERLAGAJ
mailto:mfhowryl@umich.edu
mailto:BluhmLG@troymi.gov
mailto:t.bartholomew@troymi.gov
mailto:B.Pallotta@troymi.gov
mailto:mfhowryl@umich.edu
pallottaba
Text Box
L-01



ELECTION COMMISSION MINUTES – Draft September 23, 2010 
 
A meeting of the Troy Election Commission was held September 23, 2010, at City Hall, 
500 W. Big Beaver Road. City Clerk Bartholomew called the Meeting to order at 8:00 AM. 

ROLL CALL:  
PRESENT:  Timothy Dewan, Tonni L. Bartholomew, City Clerk 
ABSENT:  David Anderson 

Minutes: Regular Meeting of June 24, 2010  
 
Resolution #EC-2010-09-010 
Moved by Dewan 
Seconded by Bartholomew 
 
RESOLVED, That the Election Commission hereby APPROVES the minutes of June 24, 
2010 as presented. 
 
Yes:  Bartholomew, Dewan 
No:  None 
Absent: Anderson 
 
MOTION CARRIED 

Approval of Election Inspector Assignments – Tuesday, November 2, 2010 
General Election 
 
Resolution #EC-2010-09-011 
Moved by Dewan 
Seconded by Bartholomew 

 
RESOLVED, That the Election Commission hereby APPOINTS Election Inspectors for the 
Tuesday, November 2, 2010 Primary Election as presented by the City Clerk. 
 
Yes:  Bartholomew, Dewan 
No:  None 
Absent:  Anderson 
 
MOTION CARRIED 

Adjournment:  
 
The meeting was adjourned at 8:03 AM. 
 
 
 

Tonni L. Bartholomew, MMC  
City Clerk 

bartholotl
Text Box
N-01a



ELECTION COMMISSION MINUTES – Draft September 23, 2010 
 
 



bartholotl
Text Box
N-01b







BOARD OF ZONING APPEALS MEETING – FINAL  DECEMBER 21, 2010 

1 

 

The Board of Zoning Appeals meeting was called to order by Chair Lambert at 7:30 p.m. on 
December 21, 2010, in the Council Chamber of the Troy City Hall. 
 
1. ROLL CALL 

 

Present: 
Michael Bartnik 
Glenn Clark 
Kenneth Courtney 
Donald L. Edmunds 
William Fisher 
A. Allen Kneale 
David Lambert 
 

Also Present: 
Paul Evans, Zoning and Compliance Specialist 
Christopher Forsyth, Assistant City Attorney 
Kathy L. Czarnecki, Recording Secretary 
 
 

2. APPROVAL OF MINUTES 
 
Resolution # BZA 2010-12-056 
Moved by Clark 
Seconded by Fisher 
 

MOVED, To approve the November 16, 2010 Regular meeting minutes as printed. 
 
Yes: All present (7) 
 

MOTION CARRIED 
 
 

3. HEARING OF CASES 
 
A. VARIANCE REQUEST, CAMELIA SANDULACHE, 405 E. MAPLE – In order to 

enlarge the existing building proposed to be used as a dental office:  1) A 16 foot 
variance from the required 20 foot side yard (east yard) setback, 2) An 11 foot 
variance from the required 30 foot yard front yard (west yard) setback, and 3) A 10 
foot variance from the requirement that the proposed handicapped ramp be set back 
20 feet from the west property line. 
 
ORDINANCE SECTIONS:  1) and 2)  30.20.01,  3)  41.45.00 
 
Mr. Evans addressed the three setback variances individually with respect to 
location and zoning of adjacent properties.  Mr. Evans said the item went before the 
Planning Commission at their November meeting, at which time no action was taken 
because the item required variances.  Mr. Evans displayed the renderings provided 
by the applicant. 

bartholotl
Text Box
N-01c



BOARD OF ZONING APPEALS MEETING – FINAL  DECEMBER 21, 2010 

2 

 

Arthur Kalajian, project architect, of 1871 Austin Drive, Troy, was present to 
represent the petitioner.  Mr. Kalajian addressed the following: 

 Nature, position and configuration of the site. 

 Existing building square footage, grade level and dual frontage of corner lot. 

 Building renovation and floor layout. 

 ADA regulated ramp and access. 

 Lighting. 

 Zoning Ordinance requirements relating to parking, landscaping and stormwater. 
 
Mr. Kalajian addressed concerns expressed by the neighboring property located at 
415 E. Maple, relating to parking, traffic and trash removal.  Mr. Kalajian said there 
would be minimal impact on the neighboring property with respect to parking.  He 
said there is no shared parking agreement with the neighbor.  Mr. Kalajian proposes 
to place a demountable precast curb in the parking area to impede cars from 
crossing onto the neighboring property.  Mr. Kalajian said trash would be placed in a 
covered container behind a gate and removed on a weekly basis for curb pickup.   
 
Petitioner Camelia Sandulache of 36669 Waltham Drive, Sterling Heights, was 
present.  Dr. Sandulache said there would be four employees.  She estimated the 
total number of people in the facility at any given time would be eight, four 
employees and four patients. 
 
Mr. Bartnik complimented the architect on the aesthetics and location of the barrier 
free ramp. 
 
Mr. Forsyth said the Board can consider the potential parking concern as far as 
practical difficulty is concerned and the impact it might have on the adjoining 
property.   
 
PUBLIC HEARING OPENED 
 
Richard Taubman of 32255 Northwestern Highway, Farmington Hills, was present to 
represent Dr. Sklar, the neighboring property located at 415 E. Maple.  He 
addressed the size of the property in relation to its proposed use, the rectangular 
shape and non-uniqueness of the property, and the existing site and no variances 
sought at the time Dr. Sklar’s facility was constructed.  Mr. Taubman said the 
increase in traffic and overflow parking would impact his client.  Mr. Taubman 
referred to Section 43.73.00 of the Zoning Ordinance that addresses expansion of 
nonconforming uses or structures.  He asked that the Board deny the variance 
request, and to the extent that should a variance be granted, that the Board grant 
the minimum variance necessary to relieve the hardship, as stipulated in Section 
43.73.00. 



BOARD OF ZONING APPEALS MEETING – FINAL  DECEMBER 21, 2010 

3 

 

A short discussion followed on: 

 Nonconforming structures. 

 Rear property line in relation to 415 E. Maple. 

 Lack of landscaping to screen parking lot view from 415 E. Maple. 

 Parking lot design. 
 
Mr. Forsyth stated the Board should make its decision based on the presentations 
provided tonight by both the petitioner and the adjacent neighbor at 415 E. Maple. 
 
Alexandru Derecichei of Century 21 Realtors, 4820 Rochester Road, Troy, was 
present.  Mr. Derecichei asked the Board to grant the request because the proposed 
use would positively impact the neighborhood and the City.   
 
Chair Lambert noted there is no written correspondence on file. 
 
PUBLIC HEARING CLOSED 
 
Discussion followed on: 

 Proposed parking; the proposal meets Zoning Ordinance requirements. 

 Planning Consultant report; Site Access and Circulation – “The site will be 
accessed from two proposed entrances; one on Kirkton Avenue and a second, 
which will access the existing parking area for the adjacent office property to the 
east and north.  This configuration is acceptable and provides adequate access 
to the small parking area in a challenging space.”  The Board noted the current 
proposal would not provide for access to the adjacent office property without 
modifications to the adjacent office property’s sidewalk. 

 
Resolution # BZA 2010-12-057 
Moved by Bartnik 
Seconded by Kneale 
 

MOVED, To grant requested variances. 
 

Preliminary Findings: 
 The variances are not contrary to public interest. 
 The variances do not permit the establishment of a prohibited use within a zoning 

district. 
 The variances do not cause an adverse effect to properties in the immediate 

vicinity or zoning district. 
 The variances relate only to property described in the application for variance. 

 

Special Findings: 
 Conforming is unnecessarily burdensome.  Variances are not excessive. 
 The practical difficulties result from the unusual characteristics of the property 

including (1) size; (2) location and (3) configuration.  The 60’ x 122’ corner lot of a 
standard rectangular configuration is difficult or impossible for the petitioner to 
make any reasonable use of the premises. 



BOARD OF ZONING APPEALS MEETING – FINAL  DECEMBER 21, 2010 

4 

 

Discussion on the motion on the floor. 
 
Chair Lambert expressed concern to support the motion because the one variance 
relates to the potential impact on the neighboring property located at 415 E. Maple. 
 
Mr. Courtney expressed concern with the proposed parking and the extension of a 
nonconforming building.  He would prefer to table the item. 
 
Mr. Clark expressed concern with the extension of a nonconforming building and the 
potential impacts on 415 E. Maple and residential characteristics of the 
neighborhood.  He would prefer to table the item. 
 
Mr. Bartnik expounded on the reasons to grant the variances.  He addressed the 
surrounding zoning and uses and practical difficulties in relation to the configuration 
of the property.  Mr. Bartnik stated the construction of any commercial building on 
this site would require approval of variances.  He believes there would be minimal 
impact on the doctor’s property. 
 
Discussion continued on: 

 Site design. 

 Floor design in relation to barrier free ramp. 

 Landscaping. 

 Parking layout/design. 
 
Resolution # BZA 2010-12-058 
Moved by Bartnik 
Seconded by Clark 
 

MOVED, To postpone the item to the January 18, 2011 Regular Meeting to provide 
the petitioner an opportunity to meet with the neighbor and come back to the Board 
with amenable revisions. 
 
Yes: All present (7) 
 

MOTION CARRIED 
 
It was requested of the petitioner to address the proposed demountable precast curb 
in the parking lot area with the Planning Department and to research whether a 
cross access easement currently exists on the site. 
 
 

5. COMMUNICATIONS 
 

None. 
 





PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING – DRAFT JANUARY 11, 2011 
  

 
 

1 
 

The Regular Meeting of the Troy City Planning Commission was called to order by Chair 
Hutson at 7:30 p.m. on January 11, 2011, in the Council Chamber of the Troy City Hall. 
 
1. ROLL CALL 

 
Present: Absent: 
Donald Edmunds Mark Maxwell 
Michael W. Hutson Mark J. Vleck 
Philip Sanzica 
Robert Schultz 
Thomas Strat 
John J. Tagle 
Lon M. Ullmann 
 

Also Present: 
R. Brent Savidant, Acting Planning Director 
Allan Motzny, Assistant City Attorney 
Zachary Branigan, Carlisle/Wortman Associates, Inc. 
Kathy L. Czarnecki, Recording Secretary 
 

2. APPROVAL OF AGENDA 
 
Resolution # PC-2011-01-001 
Moved by: Schultz 
Seconded by: Edmunds 
 

RESOLVED, To approve the Agenda as prepared. 
 

Yes: All present (7) 
Absent: Maxwell, Vleck 
 

MOTION CARRIED 
 

3. APPROVAL OF MINUTES 
 
Resolution # PC-2011-01-002 
Moved by: Tagle 
Seconded by: Sanzica 
 

RESOLVED, To approve the minutes of the December 14, 2010 Regular meeting 
as submitted. 
 

Yes: All present (7) 
Absent: Maxwell, Vleck 
 

MOTION CARRIED 

bartholotl
Text Box
N-01d



PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING – DRAFT JANUARY 11, 2011 
  

 
 

2 
 

4. PUBLIC COMMENTS – Items not on the Agenda 
 
There was no one present who wished to speak. 
 

 
SPECIAL USE REQUEST 

 
5. PUBLIC HEARING – SPECIAL USE APPROVAL AND PRELIMINARY SITE PLAN 

REVIEW (File Number SU 385) – Proposed Additions to St. Joseph Chaldean 
Catholic Church, 2442 E. Big Beaver, South side of Big Beaver, East of John R, 
Section 25, Currently Zoned R-1E (One Family Residential) and RM-1 (Multiple 
Family Residential) Districts 
 
Mr. Branigan presented a summary of the proposed Special Use and Preliminary 
Site Plan application for St. Joseph Chaldean Catholic Church.  He specifically 
addressed the additional access drive on Big Beaver, the drive along the western 
portion of the property and the building improvements. 
 
Mr. Branigan reported the proposed project could not move forward without relief 
from the Zoning Ordinance.  Therefore, he recommended taking no action on the 
request to allow the petitioner to seek the appropriate variances from the Board of 
Zoning Appeals (BZA).  Mr. Branigan further indicated a revised application 
addressing items noted in the review and a new application for Special Use 
Approval would be required should the BZA grant the variances.   
 
Ghassan Abdelnour, project architect, of G.A.V & Associates, Inc., 31471 
Northwestern Highway, Farmington Hills, and Dawad A. Defouni, project engineer, 
of J.A.D. Engineering Services, 4197 Court Anthony, Waterford, were present to 
represent the petitioner. 
 
Mr. Abdelnour addressed the intent of the proposed plan to alleviate traffic 
congestion by providing better circulation and traffic flow.  He also addressed the 
proposed building improvements. 
 
The petitioner, Monsignor Zouhair Toma Kajbou, addressed the traffic congestion 
that results with church traffic, especially during holidays and special celebrations.  
He stated the church often uses the Troy Police Department services to assist in 
directing the traffic.  Fr. Kajbou addressed the size and makeup of the congregation 
and the service schedule. 
 
Discussion followed on: 

 Traffic circulation and flow. 

 Parking. 

 Existing and proposed drop off areas. 

 Traffic Engineer review. 

 Proof of difficulty of land / hardship required for granting variances. 



PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING – DRAFT JANUARY 11, 2011 
  

 
 

3 
 

 Potential for deceleration lane on Big Beaver. 

 Services schedule. 

 Notification to public of Public Hearing. 
 
 
PUBLIC HEARING OPENED 
 
Stanley Pilchowski of 2993 Roundtree, Troy, was present.  Mr. Pilchowski spoke in 
opposition of the proposed project.  He voiced concerns relating to the traffic, the 
proposed driveway and drop off area on the western portion of the property, lighting, 
noise and the public hearing notification process. 
 
Samuel Mitchell of 2914 Roundtree, Troy, was present.  Mr. Mitchell spoke in 
opposition of the proposed project.  He voiced concerns relating to the traffic, 
property values, lighting and noise.   
 
Charles Pelzer of 2878 Roundtree, Troy, was present.  Mr. Pelzer spoke in 
opposition of the proposed project.  He voiced concerns relating to the traffic, noise 
and lighting.  Mr. Pelzer indicated his bedroom window would face the proposed 
driveway on the western portion of the property and shared a photograph showing 
the view from his bedroom window. 
 
Sam Daya of 2541 Marcus, Troy, was present.  Mr. Daya spoke in opposition of the 
proposed project.  He voiced concerns with traffic and the public hearing notification 
process.   
 
David Livingston, City of Troy Police Lieutenant/Special Operations section, was 
present.  Lt. Livingston addressed the traffic congestion on Big Beaver Road with 
respect to the church services, daily activity, holidays and special celebrations.  He 
expressed appreciation for the efforts taken by the church to improve the flow and 
circulation of traffic.  Lt. Livingston said the Police Department would welcome any 
circulation design that alleviates the congestion.  Lt. Livingston briefly addressed the 
process to erect a traffic light. 
 
Fr. Kajbou addressed the schedule of weekday church activities and Sunday and 
holiday services.  He indicated the church’s willingness to go to the expense 
necessary to alleviate existing traffic problems. 
 
Brian King of 2884 Roundtree, Troy, was present.  Mr. King spoke in opposition of 
the proposed project.  He voiced concerns relating to the close proximity of the 
proposed driveway to the residential homes, lighting and property values.   
 
PUBLIC HEARING CLOSED 



PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING – DRAFT JANUARY 11, 2011 
  

 
 

4 
 

Discussion continued on: 

 Potential for deceleration lane. 

 Special Use standards applicable to site plan. 

 Photometrics plan; impact of vehicular and building lights to adjacent residential. 

 Landscaping. 

 City owned property to the south. 
 
 

OTHER BUSINESS 
 
6. DISTRIBUTION OF DRAFT CITY OF TROY ZONING ORDINANCE 

 
A hard copy of the Draft Zoning Ordinance was distributed to each Board member.   
 
Mr. Savidant briefly outlined the schedule to introduce the Draft Zoning Ordinance 
to other Boards and Commissions and the adoption process by the Planning 
Commission and the City Council. 
 
It was the consensus of the Board to place the Draft Zoning Ordinance as an 
agenda item for discussion on the January 25, 2011 Special/Study meeting.  Mr. 
Savidant asked members to submit in writing any suggestions or revisions for 
discussion at the meeting. 
 
 

7. ELECTION OF OFFICERS FOR THE YEAR 2011 
 
Chair Hutson asked for nominations from the floor for Chair. 
 
Mr. Schultz nominated Michael Hutson. 
 
Hearing no further nominations, Chair Hutson declared the nominations for the 
position of Chair closed.   
 
A voice vote was taken; all ayes, no nays. 
 
Mr. Hutson was announced as Chair. 
 
Chair Hutson asked for nominations from the floor for Vice Chair. 
 
Mr. Schultz nominated Mark Maxwell. 
Mr. Strat nominated Donald Edmunds. 
Mr. Edmunds nominated John Tagle. 
 
Hearing no further nominations, Chair Hutson declared the nominations for the 
position of Vice Chair closed. 



PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING – DRAFT JANUARY 11, 2011 
  

 
 

5 
 

A hand vote was taken; Mr. Maxwell received five (5) hand votes. 
 
Mr. Maxwell was announced as Vice Chair. 
 
Messrs. Savidant and Branigan discussed the representation of a Planning 
Commission member on the Board of Zoning Appeals (BZA) with respect to the new 
Draft Zoning Ordinance. 
 
Chair Hutson asked for nominations from the floor for a Board of Zoning Appeals 
(BZA) Representative. 
 
Mr. Sanzica nominated Thomas Strat. 
 
Hearing no further nominations, Chair Hutson declared the nominations for the 
position of Board of Zoning Appeals Representative closed. 
 
A voice vote was taken; all ayes, no nays. 
 
Mr. Strat was announced as BZA Representative. 
 
Chair Hutson asked for nominations from the floor for a Board of Zoning Appeals 
(BZA) Alternate. 
 
Mr. Ullmann nominated Donald Edmunds. 
Mr. Edmunds nominated Philip Sanzica. 
 
At the request of Mr. Edmunds, Mr. Ullmann withdrew Mr. Edmunds’ name from the 
table.   
 
Hearing no further nominations, Chair Hutson declared the nominations for the 
position of Board of Zoning Appeals Alternate closed. 
 
A voice vote was taken; all ayes, no nays. 
 
Mr. Sanzica was announced as Alternate BZA Representative. 

 
 
8. PUBLIC COMMENTS – Items on Current Agenda 

 
Greg Geisler of 50 Aspinwall, Troy, was present to address the Draft Zoning 
Ordinance. 
 
Chair Hutson briefly reviewed the adoption process. 



PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING – DRAFT JANUARY 11, 2011 
  

 
 

6 
 

Mr. Savidant announced a hard copy of the Draft Zoning Ordinance would be 
available at the Planning Department counter as well as posted on the City’s 
website.  He encouraged the public to forward any suggestions or concerns to the 
Planning Department in writing.   

 
 
9. PLANNING COMMISSION COMMENTS 

 
A Happy New Year was wished around the table. 
 
Agenda item 5, Special Use Approval and Preliminary Site Plan Review for St. 
Joseph Chaldean Catholic Church, was discussed briefly: 

 Staff to meet with petitioner to work on design that might alleviate traffic 
congestion. 

 Public Hearing notification. 
 
 
 

The Regular Meeting of the Planning Commission adjourned at 9:14 p.m. 
 
 
Respectfully submitted, 
 
 
 
 
       
Michael W. Hutson, Chair 
 
 
 
 
       
Kathy L. Czarnecki, Recording Secretary 
 
G:\Planning Commission Minutes\2011 PC Minutes\Draft\01-11-11 Regular Meeting_Draft.doc 

 



PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING – FINAL JANUARY 11, 2011 
  

 
 

1 
 

The Regular Meeting of the Troy City Planning Commission was called to order by Chair 
Hutson at 7:30 p.m. on January 11, 2011, in the Council Chamber of the Troy City Hall. 
 
1. ROLL CALL 

 
Present: Absent: 
Donald Edmunds Mark Maxwell 
Michael W. Hutson Mark J. Vleck 
Philip Sanzica 
Robert Schultz 
Thomas Strat 
John J. Tagle 
Lon M. Ullmann 
 

Also Present: 
R. Brent Savidant, Acting Planning Director 
Allan Motzny, Assistant City Attorney 
Zachary Branigan, Carlisle/Wortman Associates, Inc. 
Kathy L. Czarnecki, Recording Secretary 
 

2. APPROVAL OF AGENDA 
 
Resolution # PC-2011-01-001 
Moved by: Schultz 
Seconded by: Edmunds 
 

RESOLVED, To approve the Agenda as prepared. 
 

Yes: All present (7) 
Absent: Maxwell, Vleck 
 

MOTION CARRIED 
 

3. APPROVAL OF MINUTES 
 
Resolution # PC-2011-01-002 
Moved by: Tagle 
Seconded by: Sanzica 
 

RESOLVED, To approve the minutes of the December 14, 2010 Regular meeting 
as submitted. 
 

Yes: All present (7) 
Absent: Maxwell, Vleck 
 

MOTION CARRIED 

pallottaba
Text Box
N-01e



PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING – FINAL JANUARY 11, 2011 
  

 
 

2 
 

4. PUBLIC COMMENTS – Items not on the Agenda 
 
There was no one present who wished to speak. 
 

 
SPECIAL USE REQUEST 

 
5. PUBLIC HEARING – SPECIAL USE APPROVAL AND PRELIMINARY SITE PLAN 

REVIEW (File Number SU 385) – Proposed Additions to St. Joseph Chaldean 
Catholic Church, 2442 E. Big Beaver, South side of Big Beaver, East of John R, 
Section 25, Currently Zoned R-1E (One Family Residential) and RM-1 (Multiple 
Family Residential) Districts 
 
Mr. Branigan presented a summary of the proposed Special Use and Preliminary 
Site Plan application for St. Joseph Chaldean Catholic Church.  He specifically 
addressed the additional access drive on Big Beaver, the drive along the western 
portion of the property and the building improvements. 
 
Mr. Branigan reported the proposed project could not move forward without relief 
from the Zoning Ordinance.  Therefore, he recommended taking no action on the 
request to allow the petitioner to seek the appropriate variances from the Board of 
Zoning Appeals (BZA).  Mr. Branigan further indicated a revised application 
addressing items noted in the review and a new application for Special Use 
Approval would be required should the BZA grant the variances.   
 
Ghassan Abdelnour, project architect, of G.A.V & Associates, Inc., 31471 
Northwestern Highway, Farmington Hills, and Dawad A. Defouni, project engineer, 
of J.A.D. Engineering Services, 4197 Court Anthony, Waterford, were present to 
represent the petitioner. 
 
Mr. Abdelnour addressed the intent of the proposed plan to alleviate traffic 
congestion by providing better circulation and traffic flow.  He also addressed the 
proposed building improvements. 
 
The petitioner, Monsignor Zouhair Toma Kajbou, addressed the traffic congestion 
that results with church traffic, especially during holidays and special celebrations.  
He stated the church often uses the Troy Police Department services to assist in 
directing the traffic.  Fr. Kajbou addressed the size and makeup of the congregation 
and the service schedule. 
 
Discussion followed on: 

 Traffic circulation and flow. 

 Parking. 

 Existing and proposed drop off areas. 

 Traffic Engineer review. 

 Proof of difficulty of land / hardship required for granting variances. 



PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING – FINAL JANUARY 11, 2011 
  

 
 

3 
 

 Potential for deceleration lane on Big Beaver. 

 Services schedule. 

 Notification to public of Public Hearing. 
 
 
PUBLIC HEARING OPENED 
 
Stanley Pilchowski of 2993 Roundtree, Troy, was present.  Mr. Pilchowski spoke in 
opposition of the proposed project.  He voiced concerns relating to the traffic, the 
proposed driveway and drop off area on the western portion of the property, lighting, 
noise and the public hearing notification process. 
 
Samuel Mitchell of 2914 Roundtree, Troy, was present.  Mr. Mitchell spoke in 
opposition of the proposed project.  He voiced concerns relating to the traffic, 
property values, lighting and noise.   
 
Charles Pelzer of 2878 Roundtree, Troy, was present.  Mr. Pelzer spoke in 
opposition of the proposed project.  He voiced concerns relating to the traffic, noise 
and lighting.  Mr. Pelzer indicated his bedroom window would face the proposed 
driveway on the western portion of the property and shared a photograph showing 
the view from his bedroom window. 
 
Sam Daya of 2541 Marcus, Troy, was present.  Mr. Daya spoke in opposition of the 
proposed project.  He voiced concerns with traffic and the public hearing notification 
process.   
 
David Livingston, City of Troy Police Lieutenant/Special Operations section, was 
present.  Lt. Livingston addressed the traffic congestion on Big Beaver Road with 
respect to the church services, daily activity, holidays and special celebrations.  He 
expressed appreciation for the efforts taken by the church to improve the flow and 
circulation of traffic.  Lt. Livingston said the Police Department would welcome any 
circulation design that alleviates the congestion.  Lt. Livingston briefly addressed the 
process to erect a traffic light. 
 
Fr. Kajbou addressed the schedule of weekday church activities and Sunday and 
holiday services.  He indicated the church’s willingness to go to the expense 
necessary to alleviate existing traffic problems. 
 
Brian King of 2884 Roundtree, Troy, was present.  Mr. King spoke in opposition of 
the proposed project.  He voiced concerns relating to the close proximity of the 
proposed driveway to the residential homes, lighting and property values.   
 
PUBLIC HEARING CLOSED 



PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING – FINAL JANUARY 11, 2011 
  

 
 

4 
 

Discussion continued on: 

 Potential for deceleration lane. 

 Special Use standards applicable to site plan. 

 Photometrics plan; impact of vehicular and building lights to adjacent residential. 

 Landscaping. 

 City owned property to the south. 
 
 

OTHER BUSINESS 
 
6. DISTRIBUTION OF DRAFT CITY OF TROY ZONING ORDINANCE 

 
A hard copy of the Draft Zoning Ordinance was distributed to each Board member.   
 
Mr. Savidant briefly outlined the schedule to introduce the Draft Zoning Ordinance 
to other Boards and Commissions and the adoption process by the Planning 
Commission and the City Council. 
 
It was the consensus of the Board to place the Draft Zoning Ordinance as an 
agenda item for discussion on the January 25, 2011 Special/Study meeting.  Mr. 
Savidant asked members to submit in writing any suggestions or revisions for 
discussion at the meeting. 
 
 

7. ELECTION OF OFFICERS FOR THE YEAR 2011 
 
Chair Hutson asked for nominations from the floor for Chair. 
 
Mr. Schultz nominated Michael Hutson. 
 
Hearing no further nominations, Chair Hutson declared the nominations for the 
position of Chair closed.   
 
A voice vote was taken; all ayes, no nays. 
 
Mr. Hutson was announced as Chair. 
 
Chair Hutson asked for nominations from the floor for Vice Chair. 
 
Mr. Schultz nominated Mark Maxwell. 
Mr. Strat nominated Donald Edmunds. 
Mr. Edmunds nominated John Tagle. 
 
Hearing no further nominations, Chair Hutson declared the nominations for the 
position of Vice Chair closed. 



PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING – FINAL JANUARY 11, 2011 
  

 
 

5 
 

A hand vote was taken; Mr. Maxwell received five (5) hand votes. 
 
Mr. Maxwell was announced as Vice Chair. 
 
Messrs. Savidant and Branigan discussed the representation of a Planning 
Commission member on the Board of Zoning Appeals (BZA) with respect to the new 
Draft Zoning Ordinance. 
 
Chair Hutson asked for nominations from the floor for a Board of Zoning Appeals 
(BZA) Representative. 
 
Mr. Sanzica nominated Thomas Strat. 
 
Hearing no further nominations, Chair Hutson declared the nominations for the 
position of Board of Zoning Appeals Representative closed. 
 
A voice vote was taken; all ayes, no nays. 
 
Mr. Strat was announced as BZA Representative. 
 
Chair Hutson asked for nominations from the floor for a Board of Zoning Appeals 
(BZA) Alternate. 
 
Mr. Ullmann nominated Donald Edmunds. 
Mr. Edmunds nominated Philip Sanzica. 
 
At the request of Mr. Edmunds, Mr. Ullmann withdrew Mr. Edmunds’ name from the 
table.   
 
Hearing no further nominations, Chair Hutson declared the nominations for the 
position of Board of Zoning Appeals Alternate closed. 
 
A voice vote was taken; all ayes, no nays. 
 
Mr. Sanzica was announced as Alternate BZA Representative. 

 
 
8. PUBLIC COMMENTS – Items on Current Agenda 

 
Greg Geisler of 50 Aspinwall, Troy, was present to address the Draft Zoning 
Ordinance. 
 
Chair Hutson briefly reviewed the adoption process. 





RETIREE HEALTH CARE BENEFITS PLAN & TRUST MINUTES –Draft January 12, 2011 
 
 

 1 

A meeting of the Retiree Health Care Benefits Plan & Trust Board of Trustees was held on 
Wednesday, January 12, 2011, at Troy City Hall, 500 W. Big Beaver Road, Troy, MI  48084.   
 
The meeting was called to order at 12:49 p.m. 
 
 
Trustees Present:  Mark Calice 

Thomas J. Gordon, II 
Mary Kerwin 

    John M. Lamerato 
William R. Need (Ex-Officio) 

    John Szerlag 
 
Trustees Absent:   Steven Pallotta 
    Thomas Rosewarne 
  
Also Present:  Tim McLean  
 
     
Minutes             
Resolution # RH – 2011 – 1- 1 
Moved by Kerwin 
Seconded by Gordon 
 
RESOLVED, That the Minutes of the October 13, 2010 meeting be approved. 
 
Yeas:  All – 5 
Absent: Pallotta, Rosewarne 
 
 
Other Business- December 31, 2010 Investment Performance     
The board reviewed the December 31, 2010 Investment Performance. 
 
Other Business – 2011 Meeting Dates         
Resolution # RH – 2011 – 1- 2 
Moved by Kerwin 
Seconded by Szerlag 
 
RESOLVED, That the board approve the 2011 calendar as follows: 
 
January 12, April 13, July 13 and October 12, meetings will be at 1:00pm or immediately 
following the Employees’ Retirement System board meeting in conference room C of City 
Hall. 
 
Yeas:  All – 5 
Absent: Pallotta, Rosewarne 
 
 

bartholotl
Text Box
N-01f



RETIREE HEALTH CARE BENEFITS PLAN & TRUST MINUTES –Draft January 12, 2011 
 
 

 2 

Investments             
Resolution # RH – 2011 – 1- 3 
Moved by Lamerato 
Seconded by Szerlag 
 
RESOLVED, That the board purchase the following investments: 
 
 $500,000 Small Cap Equity Fund 
 $500,000 New Concepts Fund 
 $500,000 Dividends Opportunity Fund 
 $500,000 Accumulative Fund 
 
Yeas:  All – 5 
Absent: Pallotta, Rosewarne 
 
Other Business – Election of Chair and Vice Chair       
Resolution # RH – 2011 – 1- 4 
Moved by Szerlag 
Seconded by Kerwin 
 
RESOLVED, That the Mark Calice be appointed Chair and Tom Gordon Vice Chair. 
 
Yeas:  All – 5 
Absent: Pallotta, Rosewarne 
 
 
Public Comment            
Martin Howrylak was in attendance. 
 
 
The next meeting is April 13, 2011 at 1:00 p.m. at Troy City Hall, Conference Room C, 
 500 W. Big Beaver Road, Troy, MI  48084. 
 
The meeting adjourned at 12:57 p.m.  
 
 
 
 
 
JML/bt\Retirement Board\Retiree Health Care Benefits Plan & Trust\2011\1-12-11 Minutes_Draft 



Downtown Development Authority Minutes – Draft                                         January 19, 2011 
 

1 
 

A meeting of the Downtown Development Authority was held on Wednesday, January 19, 2011 in the 

Lower Level Conference room, City Hall, 500 W. Big Beaver, Troy, Michigan.  Alan Kiriluk called the 

meeting to order at 7:30 AM. 

 
 

Present: Stuart Frankel  
 David Hay  
 Michele Hodges  
 Larry Keisling  
 William Kennis  
 Alan Kiriluk  
 Ernest Reschke  
 G. Thomas York  
   
Absent: Louise Schilling  
 P. Terry Knight  
 Dan MacLeish  
 Douglas Schroeder  
 Harvey Weiss  
   
Also Present: John Szerlag  
 John Lamerato  
 Mark Miller  
 Lori Bluhm  
 Brent Savidant  
 Tim McLean  
 Zak Branigan, Carlisle/Wortman Assoc.  

 
Minutes               
 

Resolution: DD-11- 01 
 
Moved by:    Kennis 

Seconded by:   Keisling 

 

RESOLVED, That the Minutes of the December 15, 2010 regular meeting be approved as amended. 

 

Yeas:  All 8   

Absent: Knight, MacLeish, Schilling, Schroeder, Weiss  

 

 

 

 

bartholotl
Text Box
N-01g



Downtown Development Authority Minutes – Draft                                         January 19, 2011 
 

2 
 

 
Old Business              
 

 

 
New Business              

A. December 31, 2010 Monthly Financial Report 

 
The December 31, 2010 monthly financial report is NOTED and FILED. 

 

 
 

B. Big Beaver Design Guidelines 

 

Resolution: DD-11- 02 
 

Moved by:    Keisling  

Seconded by:   Reschke 

 

RESOLVED, That the board approve the Big Beaver Design Guidelines as presented by 

Carlisle/Wortman Associates. 

 

 

Yeas:  All 8    

Absent: Knight, MacLeish, Schilling, Schroeder, Weiss  

 

Public Comment              
 

None. 

 

 

 

Member Comment             
 

Kennis, Keisling, Frankel and other interested board members will form a sub-committee to review 

the new zoning ordinance. 

 

 

This meeting was adjourned at 8:35 AM. 

 
Next Meeting:  February 16, 2011 at 7:30 AM in the Lower Level Conference Room, City Hall. 



ELECTION COMMISSION MINUTES – Draft January 31, 2011 
 
A meeting of the Troy Election Commission was held January 31, 2011, at City Hall, 500 
W. Big Beaver Road. City Clerk Bartholomew called the Meeting to order at 8:15 AM. 

ROLL CALL:  
PRESENT:  Timothy Dewan, Tonni L. Bartholomew, City Clerk 
ABSENT:  David Anderson 

Minutes: Regular Meeting of September 23, 2010  
 
Resolution #EC-2011-01-011 
Moved by Dewan 
Seconded by Bartholomew 
 
RESOLVED, That the Election Commission hereby APPROVES the Minutes of September 
23, 2010 as presented. 
 
Yes:  Bartholomew, Dewan 
No:  None 
Absent: Anderson 
 
MOTION CARRIED 

Approval of Consolidation of Precincts 
 
Resolution #EC-2011-01-002 
Moved by Dewan 
Seconded by Bartholomew 

 
RESOLVED, That the Election Commission of the City of Troy hereby AUTHORIZES that 
applicable precincts servicing qualified electors in the City of Troy be CONSOLIDATED for 
the May 3, 2011 Election in accordance with MCL 168.659. 
 
Yes:  Bartholomew, Dewan 
No:  None 
Absent:  Anderson 
 
MOTION CARRIED 

Adjournment:  
 
The meeting was adjourned at 8:17 AM. 
 
 
 

Tonni L. Bartholomew, MMC  
City Clerk 

 

bartholotl
Text Box
N-01h



ELECTION COORDINATING COMMITTEE MINUTES – Draft January 31, 2011 
 
A meeting of the Election Coordinating Committee of the Troy School District was held 
January 31, 2011, at City Hall, 500 W. Big Beaver Road. City Clerk Bartholomew called 
the Meeting to order at 8:00 AM. 

ROLL CALL:  
PRESENT: Assistant Superintendent Business Services Mark Rajter, Timothy 

Dewan, City Clerk Tonni L. Bartholomew 
ABSENT:  David Anderson 

Approval of Election Coordinating of the Troy School District Agreement 
 
Resolution #2011-01-001 
Moved by Dewan 
Seconded by Rajter 

 
RESOLVED, That the Election Coordinating Committee of the Troy School District hereby 
APPROVES the Troy School District Election Coordinating Agreement, as submitted. 
 
Yes:  Bartholomew, Dewan, Rajter 
No:  None 
Absent:  Anderson 
 
MOTION CARRIED 

Adjournment:  
 
The meeting was adjourned at 8:15 AM. 
 
 
 

Tonni L. Bartholomew, MMC  
City Clerk 

 

bartholotl
Text Box
N-01i



pallottaba
Text Box
N-02a































bartholotl
Text Box
N-03a



bartholotl
Text Box
N-03b



bartholotl
Text Box
N-03c



bartholotl
Text Box
N-04a





bartholotl
Text Box
N-05





bartholotl
Text Box
N-06

bartholotl
Text Box







bartholotl
Text Box
N-07

























pallottaba
Text Box
N-08





























 

 

1 
 

CCIITTYY  CCOOUUNNCCIILL  RREEPPOORRTT  
 
Date:  February 3, 2011 
 
 
To:   Honorable Mayor and City Council 
 
From:  John Szerlag, City Manager 
  John M. Lamerato, Assistant City Manager/Finance & Administration 
  Carol K. Anderson, Parks and Recreation Director 
 
Subject: ICMA Report: Parks and Recreation Services 
 
 
Background 
To delay layoffs in our core competencies of police, fire, and infrastructure maintenance, the Parks 
and Recreation Department staff was reduced by eleven (11) full time positions at the start of the 
current fiscal year and a reduction of eleven (11) additional full time positions is incorporated in the 
fiscal year 2011/12 budget.  And with an additional five (5) full time positions eliminated as a result of 
the contracting of the golf courses, ten (10) full time positions will remain in the department.  This is a 
reduction of 29 positions and 74% when compared to the full time high in 2005-06. 
 
In accordance with Council’s direction, the Community Center will remain open provided there is no 
general fund subsidy except debt service.  This does not mean, however, that all department 
programs can remain for the following reasons:  

 There may not be staff time to administer the programs  
 All parks and recreation programs do not take place at the Community Center 
 Some program offerings are not as cost efficient as others. 

 
In planning for the reductions of services the following was considered: 

1. Could another organization take over the program whereby avoiding completely eliminating the 
program? 

2. Is the amount of staff time and resources necessary to administer the program disproportional 
to the number of people served and/or revenue generated? 

3. Are the direct revenues/expenses significant enough that continuation of the program is 
warranted? 

4. Could the program or service be contracted? Will there be funds to contract the work? 
5. Is there staff available to administer the program? 

 
It is certain that City and Parks and Recreation services will change in the near future.  The 
documents attached describe those changes.  The first document (attachment 1) describes the 
services that will remain.  The second document was developed as part of the ICMA study and 
describes the services that will be eliminated (attachment 2). The ICMA report also references this 
matter on pages 59-63. 
 

pallottaba
Text Box
N-09



 

 

2 
 

CCIITTYY  CCOOUUNNCCIILL  RREEPPOORRTT  
 
 
January 27, 2011 
 
To:  Honorable Mayor and City Council 
Re:  ICMA Report:  Parks and Recreation Services 
 
The ICMA scope of study did not include the Lloyd A. Stage Nature. The FY 11/12 budget includes 
the complete closing of the Nature Center resulting in no programs or building access to the public.  A 
group of citizens has formed a 501C-3 corporation - Troy Nature Society.  This group has proposed 
conducting three programs this summer which is a reduction when compared to previous offerings by 
full time personnel but provides some nature based programming to the public.  The Troy Nature 
Society intends to continue to offer programs in the future.  The building will be open for participants 
only during the program.  The general public will be unable to access the building; however, the 
grounds will be accessible much like other City parks. 
 
The ICMA study did not include a comprehensive review of the recreation division; however, the 
Budget Impact Analysis and program eliminations were included in the study. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
CKA/mw/H/Anderson/City Council Correspondence/2011/05a-ICMA-P&R Services memo. 























 

 
CCIITTYY  CCOOUUNNCCIILL  RREEPPOORRTT  

 
January 24, 2011                         
 
 
To:   John Szerlag, City Manager     
  
From:  Susan A. Leirstein, Purchasing Director 

Gary G. Mayer, Chief of Police 
 
Subject: Police Department Firearms Exchange 
 
 
Background 
 
In the late 1990’s the Police Department began integrating the use of 9mm carbines into our 
response to critical incidents.  The Police Department is in possession of 32 Colt 9mm carbines, 
along with 56 magazines for the weapons.  The 9mm carbines are no longer used by officers, as they 
have been replaced by the .223cal patrol rifles currently in service.  The .223cal patrol rifles enable 
patrol officers to train for and react to critical incidents with capabilities over and above what the 9mm 
carbines have permitted.  The acquisition of the new optics will greatly enhance the operations of the 
Tactical Support Team. 
 
Three licensed firearms dealers were contacted regarding the trade of these 9mm carbines for rifle 
accessories to be used by the Tactical Support Team.  One of the dealers, Williams Gun Sight 
Company of Davison has agreed to accept the 9mm carbines and magazines, in exchange for eleven 
(11) new optics for the Tactical Support Team rifles.  In addition to the new optics, Williams Gun Sight 
will also provide an additional $761.00 worth of accessories for the Tactical Support Team.  The other 
two firearms dealers were only willing to provide nine (9) and ten (10) new optics, respectively.    
  
 
Fund Availability  
 
There is no cost to the City of Troy as this is a like for like exchange. 
 
 
Option 
 

No action required. 
 
 
 
 
Prepared by: Lt. Thomas Gordon, Operations Division 

bartholotl
Text Box
N-10







 

 

1 
 

CCIITTYY  CCOOUUNNCCIILL  AAGGEENNDDAA  IITTEEMM
 
Date:  January 19, 2011 
 
 
To:   John Szerlag, City Manager 
 
From:  John M. Lamerato, Acting Assistant City Manager/Finance & Administration 
  Carol K. Anderson, Parks and Recreation Director 
 
Subject: Billy Casper Golf –Guest Comments and Mystery Shop Information 
 
 
 
Background 
 
At the City Council meeting on January 10, 2011, Travis Kane, regional director of Billy Casper Golf 
gave a status report on golf operations.  As part of his presentation he explained that the 
management team seeks feedback from golfers in two ways:  email and mystery shops. 
 
Attached please find the email feedback from golfers playing at each course as well as the On-Site 
Evaluation Reports (mystery shops).  In addition, Mr. Kane has provided a summary (below) of the 
email feedback and the mystery shops and actions to be taken by Billy Casper as a result of the 
feedback.   
 
 
Email Feedback Provided by Billy Casper Golf 
If you ask, then you shall receive - 100 email responses in fewer than 100 days.   A great return rate 
from our guests!   Opening this channel of communication to our guests allows them to be a valuable 
part of the solution.   Each of these guests commented about their time spent with us; ranging from 
the pace of play, conditions of the course, and their overall experience.   I personally reach out to 
each guest (by email or phone) thanking them for their valuable feedback and (when necessary) 
inquire more about their particular experience.   The guests’ expectation is their feedback “will fall on 
deaf ears.”   They are truly surprised that I respond back in such a timely fashion and continue too 
inquire more about their experience.   In the instance that the guest had a negative experience, this 
allows an opportunity for service recovery.   Through this method, we are creating “raving fans” of the 
facilities. 
 
From this feedback, we have solidified our assumption that the guests perceive the golf operations 
and food operations as one entity vs. two different operators.   Also, the team needs to set better 
expectations and drive the experience based culture.   We must train the marshals to be visible on 
the course and enhance the guest experience.   Include additional directional signage to Sanctuary 
Lake.   The bent grass (at Sanctuary Lake) will be a challenge during the extreme heat and higher  
 
 

pallottaba
Text Box
N-11



 

 

2 
 

CCIITTYY  CCOOUUNNCCIILL  AAGGEENNDDAA  IITTEEMM
 
January 19, 2011 
 
To:  John Szerlag, City Manager 
Re:  Billy Casper Golf – Guest Comments and Mystery Shop Information 
 
utilized times.   The traffic wear on the greens and browning in the high spots on the course are 
normal occurrences that will be monitored by the superintendent.   Overall, the guests enjoyed their 
time spent with us.   They see the improvements to the “little details” and look forward to spending 
more time with us. 
 
 
Mystery Shops Provided by Billy Casper Golf 
This is a form of solicited feedback on specific points throughout the guest’s journey.   The mystery 
shop is a useful tool to enhance and ensure a consistent experience delivered by the team.   The 
results derived from the first six months were to be as expected - scores ranging from 56% to 95%.   
Though the physical scores were not as important in the beginning, I was focused on what was 
written about the specific experiences delivered.   These “shops” demonstrated the specific team 
member’s ability to create a fun and enjoyable golfing experience for our guests.   While the team did 
not consistently maximize the opportunity to communicate the “touch points” throughout the guest’s 
journey, the overall consensus throughout was of a fun and enjoyable golfing experience and a guest 
that would return.   This tells me that the team bought into the culture.   We will continue to improve 
the culture through coaching by focusing on the specific “touch points” along the guest’s journey.    
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
CKA/mw/City Council Correspondence/2011/Billy Casper Golf Guest Comments 








































































































































































	AGENDA: February 7, 2011
	COVER MEMO
	AGENDA: Return to 1st Page
	EXPLANATION BOOKLET
	ROLL CALL
	INVOCATION: Pastor Stephen Husava – Northfield Hills Baptist Church
	PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE:
	A. CALL TO ORDER:
	B. ROLL CALL:
	C. CERTIFICATES OF RECOGNITION AND SPECIAL PRESENTATIONS:
	C-1 Certificates of Recognition and Special Presentations Scheduled
	a) Proclamation Presentation: Recognizing National Children of Alcoholics Week – February 13 -19, 2011.
	b) Oakland County Introductions: Oakland County Clerk Bill Bullard, Jr., and County Commissioners: District 13-Robert Gosselin, District 19-Mike Bosnic, District 20-David W. Potts, District 24-Gary G. McGillivary.


	D. CARRYOVER ITEMS:
	D-1 No Carryover Items

	E. PUBLIC HEARINGS:
	E-1 Re-Programming Community Development Block Grant (CBDG) Program Year 2008 and Program Year 2009 Funds

	F. PUBLIC COMMENT:
	F In accordance with the Rules of Procedure of the City Council, Article 16 – Members of the Public and Visitors:

	G. RESPONSE / REPLY TO PUBLIC COMMENT
	H. POSTPONED ITEMS:
	H-1  No Postponed Items

	I.  REGULAR BUSINESS:
	I-1 Board and Committee Appointments:
	I-2 Board and Committee Nominations
	I-3 Request for Closed Session – No Closed Session Requested
	I-4 Contract Extension – Auditing Services
	I-5 Adoption of Troy City Council Goals and Vision Statement
	I-6 Approval of Early Retirement Incentive Program – Classified and Exempt Employees

	J.  CONSENT AGENDA:
	J-1a Approval of “J” Items NOT Removed for Discussion
	J-1b  Address of “J” Items Removed for Discussion by City Council
	J-2  Approval of City Council Minutes
	J-3 Proposed City of Troy Proclamation: National Children of Alcoholics Week – February 13 - 19, 2011
	J-4 Standard Purchasing Resolutions
	a) Standard Purchasing Resolution 1: Award to Low Bidder: LED Lighting and Retrofits

	J-5 Renewal of Membership in the Traffic Improvement Association (TIA) of Oakland County
	J-6 Acceptance of Two Permanent Easements for Public Utilities form Wattles Square Center, LLC - #88-20-100-038 and Atto Construction, Inc. - #88-20-24-100-039
	J-7 Request from Board of County Road Commissioners of Oakland County to Grant a Highway Easement on City Owned Property, Section 6 – Sidwell #88-20-06-101-001
	J-8 Mon Jin Lau Annual Fireworks Use Request

	K. MEMORANDUMS AND FUTURE COUNCIL AGENDA ITEMS:
	K-1 Announcement of Public Hearings: None Submitted
	K-2 Memorandums (Items submitted to City Council that may require consideration at  some future point in time): None Submitted

	L. COUNCIL REFERRALS:
	L-1  Resolution Submitted for Discussion Purposes by Council Member Howrylak

	M. COUNCIL COMMENTS
	M-1   No Council Comments Advanced

	N. REPORTS
	N-1 Minutes – Boards and Committees:
	a) Election Commission/Final – September 23, 2010
	b) Downtown Development Authority/Final – December 15, 2010
	c) Board of Zoning Appeals/Final – December 21, 2010
	d) Planning Commission Regular/Draft – January 11, 2011
	e) Planning Commission Regular /Final – January 11, 2011
	f) Retiree Health Care Benefits Plan & Trust/Draft – January 12, 2011
	g) Downtown Development Authority/Draft – January 19, 2011
	h) Election Commission/Draft – January 31, 2011
	i) Election Coordinating Committee/Draft – January 31, 2011

	N-2 Department Reports:
	a) December 31, 2010 – Quarterly Financial Report

	N-3 Letters of Appreciation 
	a) Eisenhard Family to Police Department
	b. Alanda Slusser to Police Department
	c. Margaret Ann Rendziperis to Carla Vaughan, Director of Sr. Services

	N-4  Proposed Proclamations/Resolutions from Other Organizations:
	a) City of Rochester Resolution: Proposed Eliminate the Requirement that Clerks Send Corrected Voter Identification Cards Due to Changes in District for U.S. Representative, State Senate, State Representative, or County Commission

	N-5  Michigan Public Service Commission – Notice of Hearing for the Gas Customers of the Consumers Energy Company – Case No. U-16485
	N-6  Troy Youth Assistance – Board of Directors Meeting Minutes – November 18, 2010
	N-7  MLCC Sunday Sales Reports
	N-8  Stickney v. City of Troy et al.
	N-9  ICMA Report: Parks and Recreation Services
	N-10  Police Department Firearms Exchange
	N-11  Billy Casper Golf – Guest Comments and Mystery Shop Information

	O. STUDY ITEMS
	O-1  No Study Items Presented

	P. CLOSED SESSION
	P-1  No Closed Session Requested

	F. ADJOURNMENT




